AGREEMENT

Between

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SPRINGFIELD

AND

SPRINGFIELD EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Effective: July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I - GEN	IERAL 1
ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION1
ARTICLE 2	REPRESENTATION FEE
ARTICLE 3	PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS4
ARTICLE 4	SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT5
ARTICLE 5	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES5
ARTICLE 6	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE7
ARTICLE 7	INSURANCE PROTECTION10
ARTICLE 8	PERSONNEL AND PERSONNEL RECORDS13
ARTICLE 9	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS13
ARTICLE 10	BOARD RIGHTS14
ARTIQLE 11	LEAVES OF ABSENCE & SICKNESS
ARTICLE 12	MISCEL LANEOUS PROVISIONS 21
ARTICLE 13	DURATION22
PART II - SEC	CRETARIES23
ARTICLE 14	WORKYEAR23
ARTICLE 15	DAILY WORK HOURS24
ARTICLE 16	OVERTIME24
ARTICLE 17	EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES25
ARTICLE 18	CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION OR POSITION26
ARTICLE 19	SENIORITY26
ARTICLE 20	EVALUATION PROCEDURE27
ARTICLE 21	SALARY GUIDES27
PART III - TE	ACHERS30

ARTICLE 22	PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND RIGHTS	31
ARTICLE 23	NON-TEACHING DUTIES	37
ARTICLE 24	PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	38
ARTICLE 25	TEACHER EVALUATION	42
ARTICLE 26	SABBATICAL LEAVE	42
ARTICLE 27	PROMOTIONS, VACANCIES OR REDUCTIONS IN FORCE	44
ARTICLE 28	TEACHER ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFERS	45
ARTICLE 29	PROFESSIONAL BUSINESS LEAVE	46
ARTICLE 30	TEACHER-ADMINISTRATIVE-BOARD COMMITTEE	46
ARTICLE 31	FAIR DISMISSAL PROCEDURE	48
ARTICLE 32	SALARIES AND OTHER COMPENSATION	49
ARTICLE 33	AFTER-SCHOOL ACTIVITIES	50
ARTICLE 34	OVERNIGHT FIELD TRIPS	
ARTICLE 35	SUMMER SCHOOL	51
ARTICLE 36	OTHER ACTIVITIES	
ARTICLE 37	MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS	59
PART IV - CU	STODIANS	59
ARTICLE 38	CURRENT DAILY WORK SCHEDULE AND WORK WEEK	59
ARTICLE 39	VACATIONS	61
ARTICLE 40	HOLIDAYS	62
ARTICLE 41	VOLUNTARY TRANSFER, REASSIGNMENT AND PROMOTION	63
ARTICLE 42	TENURE OF OFFICE AND SENIORITY	63
ARTICLE 43	UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT	63
ARTICLE 44	CONTRACTS	64
ARTICLE 45	CONFERENCES/WORKSHOPS/SUBCONTRACTING	64

ARTICLE 46	COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED SICK DAYS	65
ARTICLE 47	EXTRA COMPENSATION	65
ARTICLE 48	PAINTING	66
PART V - AID	DES AND BUS DRIVERS	70
ARTICLE 49	WORK YEAR	70
ARTICLE 50	WORK WEEK, WORK HOURS, AND WORK LOAD	70
ARTICLE 51	EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES	71
ARTICLE 52	SENIORITY AND JOB SECURITY	71
ARTICLE 53	SALARIES, OVERTIME, AND OTHER FORMS OF REMUNERATION	72
ARTICLE 54	VOLUNTARY AND INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS	
ARTICLE 55	EMPLOYEE OBSERVATION/EVALUATION	73
ARTICLE 56	JOB POSTING PROCEDURES	74
ARTICLE 57	COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED SICK LEAVE	74
ARTICLE 58	PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	75

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of July, 2016.

BY AND BETWEEN

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SPRINGFIELD IN THE COUNTY OF UNION

hereinafter referred to as the "Board"

AND

SPRINGFIELD EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

hereinafter referred to as the "Association"

The provisions of this Agreement will constitute a binding obligation of the parties for the duration hereof. Any previously adopted policy, rule or regulation of the parties which is in conflict with a provision of this Agreement shall be superseded and replaced by this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement which changes pre-existing policies, rules or regulations of the parties will operate retroactively unless so stated.

The Board agrees not to discriminate against any employee because of his/her membership in the Association and its affiliates or because of his/her participation in collective negotiations with the Board or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement, or in the formulation or the enforcement of Board policies.

This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all negotiable issues, which were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement. The parties agree that during the negotiations resulting in this Agreement, each party had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any term and condition of employment as to which the parties are obligated to collectively negotiate.

PART I - GENERAL

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

- A. In accordance with the provisions of the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act, the Board recognizes the Association for the purpose of professional negotiations as the exclusive representative for the following who are under contract with the Board:
 - I. All certificated teaching personnel dealing directly with children.

- 2. All certificated personnel in the Division of Special Services.
- 3. Guidance Counselors.
- 4. Librarians/Media Consultants.
- 5. Office personnel.
- 6. Custodians.
- 7. Maintenance personnel.
- 8. All Instructional Aides.
- 9. All Non-Instructional Aides.
- Bus Drivers.

Only persons represented by the Association shall have the contract rights hereinafter defined, and it is further understood that the following personnel are specifically excluded from this recognition:

- 1. Superintendent.
- 2. Board Secretary/Business Administrator.
- Director of Student Support Services.
- 4. Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction.
- 5. Director of Curriculum, Assessment and Instruction.
- 6. Principals.
- 7. Assistant Principals.
- 8. Supervisors.
- 9. Confidential Secretaries.
- 10. Summer maintenance employees.
- 11. Director of Human Resources and Professional Development.
- 12. Director of Transportation.
- 13. Director of Instructional Technology.
- 14. Technology Technicians.
- 15. IT Manager.
- 16. Messenger.

The within recognition shall not impair the rights of any employee or group of employees under Section 19 of Article I of the New Jersey Constitution.

B. Unless otherwise indicated, the term "Employee" when used in Part 1 of this Agreement, shall refer to all employees represented by the Association in the negotiating unit as defined above. The provisions of Part II shall control for Secretaries and Office Personnel, the provisions of Part III shall control for certificated personnel, the provisions of Part IV shall control for Maintenance personnel and the provisions of Part V shall control for Aides and Bus Drivers. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of Part 1 of this Agreement and any other Part, the provisions of the individual Part(s) shall prevail over Part I.

ARTICLE 2 REPRESENTATION FEE

A. REPRESENTATION FEE

If an employee does not become a member of the Association during any membership year (i.e., from September 1 to the following August 31) which is covered in whole or in part by this Agreement, said employee will be required to pay a representation fee to the Association. This fee shall be the maximum allowed by law.

B. PROCEDURE

1. Notification

- a. Prior to the beginning of each membership year, the Association will notify the Board in writing of the amount of the representation fee to be paid by non-members.
- b. Prior to November of each year, the Association will submit to the Board a list of those employees who have neither become members of the Association for the then current membership year nor paid directly to the Association the full amount of the representation fee for that membership year. The Board will deduct from the salaries of such employees, in accordance with paragraph c. below, the full amount of the representation fee and promptly will transmit the amount so deducted to the Association.
- c. The Board will deduct the representation fee in equal installments, as nearly as possible, from the paychecks paid to each employee on the aforesaid list during the remainder of the membership year in question.
- d. The deductions will begin with the first paycheck paid:
 - (1) 10 days after receipt of the aforesaid list by the Board; or
 - (2) 30 days after the employee begins his/her employment in a bargaining unit position.

2. Termination

If an employee who is required to pay a representation fee terminates his/her employment with the Board before the Association has received the representation fee to which it is entitled under this Article, the Board will deduct the unpaid portion of the fee from the last paycheck paid to said employee during the membership year in question.

3. Mechanics of Deducting and Transmission of Fees

Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the mechanics for the deduction of representation fees and the transmission of such fees to the Association will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues to the Association.

C. INDEMNIFICATION AND SAVE HARMLESS PROVISION

1. Liability

The Association agrees to indemnify and hold the Board harmless against any liability which may arise by reason of any action taken by the Board in complying with the provisions of this Article, provided that:

- a. the Board gives the Association timely notice in writing of any claim, demand, suit or other form of liability in regard to which it will seek to implement this paragraph, and
- b. if the Association so requests in writing, the Board will cooperate with the Association in the defense of the claim.

2. Exception

It is expressly understood that paragraph 1 above will not apply to any claim, demand, suit or other form of liability which may arise as a result of any type of willful misconduct by the Board.

ARTICLE 3 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

A. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

- The Board agrees to make available in the Springfield School District and to provide the bookkeeping necessary for a tax shelter annuity program (as described in Sections 403(b) and 457 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended).
- 2. The Board shall remit a check at the end of each pay period to the tax shelter annuity company as designated by an employee.
- The Board's only responsibility in this matter is to honor the written request of the individual employees to participate in the plan and remit the money as outlined above.
- 4. The Board and the Association agree that the tax shelter annuity companies that are now available in the Springfield School District shall

continue and that companies shall not be added or deleted without mutual agreement.

B. SUMMER PAYMENT PLAN

Each ten (10) month employee may individually elect, during the first week of the work year or the beginning of employment, to have ten percent (10%) of his/her semimonthly salary deducted from his/her paycheck. These funds shall be paid to the employee, at his/her option, in the final pay in June or according to a schedule of payments throughout the summer as requested by the employee and approved by the Board or to his/her estate upon the death of the employee or on termination of employment.

C. The Board shall provide for the direct deposit of any employee's paycheck into a bank account of the employee's choice with appropriate authorization from the employee.

ARTICLE 4 SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT

A. MEETINGS

The Board and the Association agree to commence collective negotiations in accordance with Public Employment Relations Commission rules and regulations. Both parties agree to meet at reasonable times and to negotiate in good faith.

B REPRESENTATIVES

The Board and the Association agree that their respective representatives shall be given full authority to negotiate, but any agreement reached shall be subject to ratification by the respective bodies.

B. MODIFICATION

This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties.

ARTICLE 5 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES

A. MEETINGS

Whenever a representative of the Association or any employee is mutually scheduled by the parties to participate during working hours in grievance proceedings, conferences, or meetings, he/she shall suffer no loss in pay.

B. USE OF SCHOOL BUILDING

Representatives of the Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business and/or conduct meetings on school property, provided, however, that the approval of the building principal is obtained in advance as to time and place, provided that no such transactions, official business and/or meetings shall be permitted to interfere with or interrupt normal school operations or teaching responsibilities.

The Association shall have the privilege of using school facilities and equipment including computers, typewriters, word processors, duplicating equipment, calculating machines and audio-visual equipment at reasonable times, when such equipment and/or facilities are not otherwise in use. This privilege shall be subject to the prior approval of the building principal of the school in which the facilities and/or equipment is to be used. The Association shall provide all materials and supplies incident to such use. No piece of equipment as referred to above is to be removed from any school building. The Association shall be responsible for any damage resulting from the use of any equipment by the Association or its representatives.

C. NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Association shall have the privilege of posting appropriate notice of its meetings, social affairs or Association business. Copies of all materials to be posted shall be furnished to the building principal in advance of posting. The Association shall have the right to distribute, through the use of the employees' mail boxes, material dealing with the proper and legitimate business of the Association.

D. ASSOCIATION RESPONSIBILITIES

- The Association shall be responsible for acquainting its members with all
 provisions of this Agreement and shall make best efforts for adherence to
 the provisions of this Agreement by its members during the life of this
 Agreement.
- 2. At the beginning of each year, the Association shall furnish to the Superintendent a listing of its officers, and updates regarding any changes that occur during the school year.

E. ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In response to a reasonable request, the Association shall be granted access to the following information: class size, number of employee specialists, public budget information, annual financial audits, listing of professional staff, agendas and minutes of all public Board meetings, group employee health insurance premiums and experience figures, and the names and addresses of all employees. The use of

such information is limited to assisting the Association for collective negotiations and grievance purposes only.

ARTICLE 6 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. DEFINITION

- 1. A "grievance" is a claim by an employee or the Association based upon the interpretation, application or alleged violation of this Agreement, or Board policies or administrative decisions affecting the terms and conditions of employment of an employee or group of employees.
- Non-tenured employees shall not be permitted to grieve their non-reemployment.
- "Work days" are defined as days on which the grievant is scheduled to work.

B. PURPOSE

The purpose of this procedure is to provide the means by which grievances can be appealed and resolved at the earliest level. Proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as possible.

C. PROCEDURE

- A grievance to be considered under this procedure must be submitted, in writing, to the immediate supervisor by the employee or the Association within twenty (20) work days of its known occurrence. Failure to do so shall be deemed to constitute an abandonment of the grievance. The written grievance shall include the nature of the grievance and the remedy sought.
- 2. Within five (5) work days after receipt of the written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall give the employee the opportunity to discuss the grievance either directly or through the Association's designated representative with the objective of resolving the matter informally. Within five (5) work days after that discussion, the immediate supervisor shall issue a written memorandum to the grievant setting forth his/her determination.
- 3. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached at the informal level hereinabove set forth, or if no decision has been rendered within five (5) work days after presentation of the grievance, the employee or the Association may present the grievance in writing within five (5) work days after the determination made in Paragraph C.2 above, to the Superintendent. The written grievance shall set forth:

- a. The nature of the grievance and the remedy requested, including any specific provision(s) of this Agreement alleged to have been violated.
- b. The nature and extent of injury or loss.
- c. The basis of dissatisfaction with the prior determination.
- d. The date(s) of the alleged occurrence; and
- e. The relief sought.
- 4. The Superintendent's written decision shall be rendered to the employee and the Association within ten (10) work days after receipt of the written grievance by the Superintendent.
- 5. If the grievance is not satisfactorily disposed of by the Superintendent, or if no decision has been rendered within the time limit set forth, then the grievance may be referred by the individual or the Association to the Board within ten (10) work days of the completion of the proceedings described in Paragraph C.4 above, or twenty (20) work days after the grievance was delivered to the Superintendent, whichever comes first. The submission to the Board shall be in writing and shall include copies of all relevant documents previously considered in the grievance procedure together with a statement explaining the dissatisfaction with those decisions previously rendered. The Board, through its designee, shall, in writing, within thirty (30) days, advise the Association and the employee of its determination and shall forward a copy thereof to both the Superintendent and the immediate supervisor of the aggrieved employee.
- 6. The stipulated times referred to in Paragraphs C.1 through C.5 above shall be considered as outer limits to be strictly followed, except where extenuating circumstances occur, in which case the time limits specified may be extended upon the mutual consent of the parties.

7. Arbitration

- a. In the event the disposition made in the preceding step is deemed unsatisfactory or if no decision has been rendered within the time limit set forth above and in the event the grievance involves an alleged violation of this Agreement, the Association may request the Public Employment Relations Commission to process the grievance in accordance with its rules and regulations for the selection of an arbitrator. Such request must be made within fifteen (15) calendar days of the Board's decision or forty-five (45) work days after the grievance was delivered to the Board, whichever comes first.
- b. Grievances which concern the interpretation, application or alleged violation of Board policies and administrative decisions or of statutes and regulations are not arbitrable.

- c. The arbitrator shall submit his/her determination on the issue submitted to him/her and shall rule on nothing else. His/her determination, binding in nature, shall be limited strictly to the application or interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement, and he/she shall be without power or authority to make any determination contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator may not alter, add to or omit from the provisions of this Agreement.
- d. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days of the close of the hearing.
- e. Each party will assume the total cost incurred by itself. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator are the only cost which shall be shared equally.

D. RIGHTS TO REPRESENTATION

Any aggrieved employee may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself/herself, or, at his/her option, by representative(s) selected or approved by the Association. Whenever an Association representative is going to be present at a grievance hearing, the person hearing the grievance will be notified at least one (1) day in advance. When an employee is not represented by the Association, the Association shall have the right to be present and to state its views at all stages of the grievance procedure. The Board shall have the right to designate or retain a representative to participate at any stage of the grievance procedure.

E. MISCELLANEOUS

1. Group Grievance

If, in the judgment of the Association, a grievance affects a group or class of employees, the Association may process such a grievance through all levels of the grievance procedure even though the employee does not wish to do so.

2. Separate Grievance File

All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the employees.

3. Continuation of Assignments

Any and all employee grievants shall, during and notwithstanding the pendency of any grievance, continue to observe all assignments and applicable rules and regulations of the Board until such grievance and any effect thereof shall have been fully determined.

4. Failure to follow the timelines set forth herein shall constitute an abandonment of the grievance by the grievant.

5. Meetings and Hearings

All meetings and hearings under this procedure shall not be conducted in public and shall include only such parties in interest and their designated or selected representatives, heretofore referred to in this Article.

ARTICLE 7 INSURANCE PROTECTION

A. HEALTH

- 1. All employees represented by the Association prior to January 1, 2008, and employed for thirty (30) hours per week or more will be provided with health insurance coverage with benefits at least the same as the health insurance plans set forth in the next sentence. During the term of this Agreement the Board shall offer Horizon Direct Access \$10, Horizon Direct Access \$20/\$40, Horizon Point of Service and Horizon Exclusive Provider Organization. All employees shall continue to contribute annually toward the cost of the premium for their coverage through payroll deductions at the rates set forth in tier four of P.L. 2011, Chapter 78 (notwithstanding the sunset of such Chapter 78) or as required by law, whichever is greater. The contributions will continue until a different formula is negotiated between the parties. Contributions may be made on a pre-tax basis using a qualified Chapter 125 Plan offered by the Board consistent with IRS regulations.
- 2. All employees hired by the Board on or after January 1, 2008 and employed for thirty (30) hours per week or more shall be provided with health insurance coverage with benefits no greater than Horizon Direct Access \$10, and subject to the same contribution toward the cost of the premium as set forth in section A(1) above.

3. Employees with dependent coverage shall be offered annually (July 1 to June 30) the option of waiving medical insurance benefits as set forth in this Agreement. Any employee who executes an appropriate form, provided by the Board, waiving coverage will receive for the year to which the waiver applies the following amounts based upon the number of employees who execute waivers, which amounts shall be payable in four equal installments per quarter:

Number of Employees	Waiver Amount	
44 or less	\$4,000	
At least 45 but less than 50	\$5,000	
At least 50	\$6,000	

During any year in which an employee has waived family medical insurance coverage, the employee shall be able to terminate the waiver and re-enroll in the family health insurance coverage if the employee experiences a change in his/her need for the family coverage, including but not limited to divorce, death of a spouse, or loss of spouse's health insurance. Employees hired during the year who elect not to take the family coverage, and husband and wife employees terminating his/her employment prior to July 1 and employees terminating his/her waivers prior to July 1 shall receive the above waiver payment prorated on a quarterly basis. If it is required by IRS Regulations to implement the provisions of this paragraph, the Board shall adopt a 125 Plan.

- 4. All employees hired by the Board on or after July 1, 2016 and employed for thirty (30) hours per week or more shall be provided with health insurance coverage with benefits no greater than the Horizon Exclusive Provider Organization, and subject to the same contribution toward the cost of the premium as set forth in section A(1) above. Subject to paragraph 6 of this Section A, upon any such employee obtaining tenure, such employee may elect to select either the Horizon Exclusive Provider Organization or Horizon Point of Service plans if then offered by the Board.
- 5. Employees enrolled in Horizon Direct Access \$10, Horizon Direct Access \$20/\$40, or Horizon Point of Service on the effective date of this Agreement shall be eligible for a one-time incentive payment to move from such plan to a plan with a lower premium during the first year of this Agreement. The incentive payment shall be equal to 50% of the difference in the cost of the 2016-17 premiums between the employee's original coverage and the employee's new coverage. The incentive payment shall be made quarterly in equal installments and may be prorated based upon the date of the employee's election to change plans. Subject to paragraph 6 of this Section A, employees accepting the one-time incentive will not be permitted to re-enroll in any plan which has a higher premium except as provided in paragraph 6 below.

6. Employees covered by paragraphs 2 and 4 of this Agreement or who have received the one-time incentive payment in paragraph 5 of this Agreement may enroll in an insurance plan offered by the Board which has a premium higher than the plan to which they are limited by such paragraphs provided that such employee pays 100% of the difference in the premium between the employee's plan specified in paragraphs 2 or 4, or selected through the process described in paragraph 5, as applicable, and the plan selected by the employee. Such employees shall pay such increased premium costs through payroll deductions. Contributions may be made on a pre-tax basis using a qualified Chapter 125 Plan offered by the Board consistent with IRS regulations.

B. F DENTAL

The Board shall make available dental care coverage for each employee employed for thirty (30) hours per week or more and, in cases where appropriate, for family plan coverage. With respect to this coverage, in the event that the carriers are changed the benefit level shall be equal to or greater than that provided prior to such change.

The Association and Board will mutually investigate prospective carriers to ensure that the coverage is equal to or greater than that provided. In the event that more than one carrier is identified, the Board reserves the right to select the carrier.

C. PRESCRIPTION

During the life of this Agreement, employees employed for thirty (30) hours per week or more will not have to pay for such prescription coverage. The Board shall provide prescription coverage for employees only. The Board does, however, reserve the right to select or change the insurance carrier with it being understood and agreed that the benefit protection there under shall be equal to or greater than that provided prior to any such change. In no event shall the Board's contribution be greater than \$184,154 for the life of this Agreement. Increases in premium cost above the \$184,154 set forth above will be paid for by either modifying the co-payments or through any other mutually agreeable plan. During the term of this Agreement, the co-pay for prescriptions shall be \$15 for generic drugs and \$35 for brand name drugs.

D. VISION

During the life of this Agreement, the Board shall provide optional vision coverage for each employee and in cases where appropriate for family plan insurance coverage. All employees participating in vision coverage shall contribute 100% of the costs of such insurance.

ARTICLE 8 PERSONNEL AND PERSONNEL RECORDS

A. FILE

An employee shall have the right, upon written request, to review the contents of his/her personnel file during normal office hours. The employee may make copies at his/her expense of any documents contained therein. An employee shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association accompany him/her during such review. Personnel references, academic credentials, pre-employment data and other similar documents shall not be available for the employee's inspection. The Board agrees to protect the confidentiality of an employee's personnel file subject to applicable law.

B. DEROGATORY MATERIAL

No material derogatory to an employee's conduct, service, character, or personality shall be placed in his/her personnel file unless the employee has had an opportunity to review the material. The employee shall acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to review such material by affixing his/her signature to the copy to be filed with the express understanding that such signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof. Refusal to sign the acknowledgement will not preclude the placement of any such materials into the personnel folder. The employee shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material and his/her answer shall be reviewed by the Superintendent or his/her designee and attached to the file copy. The provisions of this section do not apply to the material excluded from review in Section A. above.

C. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Final evaluation of an employee upon termination of his/her employment shall be concluded prior to severance.

D. The Board shall not establish a separate personnel file which is not available for the employee's inspection.

ARTICLE 9 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

- A. With the exception of the non-renewal of a non-tenured employee, no employee shall be discharged, disciplined, reprimended or reduced in compensation without just cause. Any such action asserted by the Board, or an agent or representative thereof, with the exception of the non-renewal of a non-tenured employee, shall be subject to the grievance procedure herein set forth.
- B. Whenever any employee is required to appear before the Superintendent, Board, or any committee or member thereof concerning any matter which could

adversely affect the continuation of that employee in his/her position, employment or the salary or any increments pertaining thereto, then the employee shall be given prior written notice of the reasons for such meeting or interview and shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association present to advise and represent him/her during such meeting or interview.

- C. Nothing herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any employee, such rights as he/she may have under New Jersey School Laws or other applicable laws and regulations. The rights granted to the employee thereunder shall be deemed to be in addition to those provided elsewhere.
- D. No employee shall be prevented from wearing pins or other identification of membership in the Association or its affiliates, so long as such conduct does not interrupt school operations or otherwise interfere with classroom instruction.
- E. Whenever members of the bargaining unit are scheduled by the parties hereto, to participate during working hours, in conferences, meetings or negotiations regarding the Collective Bargaining Agreement, they will suffer no loss of pay.

ARTICLE 10 BOARD RIGHTS

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement and under provisions of applicable laws of the State of New Jersey, the Association recognizes that the Board reserves to itself sole jurisdiction and authority over matters of policy and retains the right, subject only to the limitations imposed by the language of this Agreement subject to the laws of the State of New Jersey and applicable regulations thereunder to:

- a. Direct the employees of the Springfield School District;
- Hire, promote, transfer, assign and retain all employees in positions in the Springfield School District, and for just cause, to suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action against all employees;
- Subcontract work, establish new positions, abolish or change existing positions, or relieve employees from duty because of budgetary reasons, lack of work or for other legitimate reasons;
- d. Maintain the efficiency of the Springfield School District operations entrusted to it;
- e. Determine the methods, means and personnel by which such operations are to be conducted;
- f. Take whatever actions may be necessary to carry out the mission of the Springfield School District in situations of emergency;
- g. To determine the school calendar and hours of operation;
- h. To establish grade levels and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational and social events for students, all as deemed necessary and/or advisable by the Board; and

i. To control the means and methods of instruction, the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials, aids and equipment.

It is further understood that under the rulings of the Courts of New Jersey and the State Commissioner of Education that the Board is forbidden from waiving any rights or powers granted to it by law.

ARTICLE 11 LEAVES OF ABSENCE & SICKNESS

All reference to "days" shall mean work days.

A day's salary for employees shall be defined at 1/200 of the annual salary for ten (10) month employees, 1/210 of the annual salary of ten and one-half (10-1/2) month employees, and 1/260 of the annual salary for twelve (12) month employees, and in no instance where a deduction is made from a salary shall the deduction be greater than the regular wage of the individual for the day involved.

The provisions of each section of this Article operate independently of all other sections.

A. PERSONAL ILLNESS

The following sick leave with full pay shall be granted to employees covered by this Agreement during any school year:

- 1. (a) For employees covered by Part II of this Agreement with up to 3 uninterrupted years of service, ten (10) sick days per year. Employees covered by Part II of this Agreement with more than 3 uninterrupted years of service shall receive twenty (20) sick days per year.
 - (b) For employees covered by Part III of this Agreement, twenty (20) sick days per year for tenured and non-tenured.
 - (c) For employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement with up to 3 uninterrupted years of service, twelve (12) sick days per year. Employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement with more than 3 uninterrupted years of service shall receive twenty (20) sick days per year.
 - (d) For employees covered by Part V of this Agreement, ten (10) sick days per year.
- 2. Employees covered by Parts II and IV of this Agreement shall accumulate up to twelve (12) unused sick days per year with no maximum limit. Employees covered by Part III of this Agreement shall accumulate up to fifteen (15) unused sick days each year with no maximum limit. Employees covered by Part V of this Agreement shall accumulate up to ten (10) unused sick days per year with no maximum limit.

- 3. Absences for sick leave purposes shall be charged first to the annual allowance of any employee until it is fully utilized and, thereafter, to the accumulated balance.
- 4. Absences on sick leave in excess of that provided under I and 2 may be allowed, subject to Board approval and deduction of salary paid a substitute filling the position, up to 20 days' time for each completed year of service by the employee for those persons who are suffering from an extended illness and are under the continuous care and treatment of an attending physician as follows:
 - (a) For employees covered by Part II of this Agreement, 12 months in any current 10 year period.
 - (b) For employees covered by Part III or Part IV of this Agreement, 10 months in any current 10 year period.
 - (c) The above does not apply to employees covered by Part V of this Agreement.
- 5. Absences for illness in excess of 5 consecutive days must be certified by the attending physician. In the case of frequent or intermittent illness, the Board or Superintendent will require the employee to submit a certificate of illness from the attending physician or submit to an examination or examinations by the school physician.
- 6. Upon written request from an employee, a written accounting of that employee's accumulated sick leave will be provided.

B. ILLNESS IN THE FAMILY

Family Illness Days will be provided to employees covered by this Agreement as follows:

- 1. For employees covered by Part II of this Agreement, absence due to a serious illness of any relative living in the employee's immediate household or a mother or father, or children, sibling, or in-laws, full pay for not more than five (5) days in each school year shall be paid the employee. Such employees shall report such absence by following the established Springfield School District absentee policy.
- 2. For employees covered by Part III of this Agreement, absence due to a serious illness of anyone, not in the employ of the employee, living in the employee's immediate household or a mother, father, sibling or child, full pay for not more than five (5) days in each school year shall be paid the employee. Days needed for this purpose will be deducted from the accumulated sick leave allowance which is in excess of that which is stipulated as mandatory by the laws of the State of New Jersey. Such

absences shall be approved by the Superintendent. If there is no such accumulation of sick leave, such pay shall be subject to deduction of salary paid a substitute.

- 3. For employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement, absences due to serious illness of any relative living in the employee's immediate household or a sibling, mother, father and child, full pay for not more than five (5) days in each school year shall be paid the employee. Such absences shall be approved by the building principal.
- 4. For employees covered by Part V of this Agreement, absences due to serious illness of any relative living in the employee's immediate household or a sibling, mother, father and child, full pay for not more than three (3) days in each school year shall be paid the employee. Such absences shall be approved by the building principal.

C. DEATH

Absences because of death shall be provided to employees covered by this Agreement as follows:

- 1. For employees covered by Part II of this Agreement, absences because of death in the employee's immediate household or the employee's spouse, children, parents, grandparents, brothers and sisters, including father-in-law and mother-in-law, son-in-law and daughter-in-law, shall be allowed with full pay for a period not exceeding five days in each such case.
- 2. For employees covered by Part III of this Agreement, absences because of death in the employee's immediate household or the employee's spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, brothers and sisters, including father-in-law and mother-in-law, shall be allowed with full pay for a period not exceeding five days in each such case.
- 3. For employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement, absences because of death in the employee's immediate household or immediate family, including father-in-law and mother-in-law, shall be allowed with full pay for a period not exceeding five days in each such case. (Not deductible from sick leave).
- 4. For employees covered by Part V of this Agreement, up to five (5) days shall be granted in the event of the death of immediate family members (spouse, child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, parent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother, sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law) and any other member of the immediate household.
- 5. Absence due to death of any other family member will be permitted with full pay for the day of the funeral.

D. PERSONAL BUSINESS

Absence for personal business shall be granted to employees covered by this Agreement as follows:

- 1. An employee covered by Part II of this Agreement will be granted, if needed, two personal business days, which shall be with full pay, to accomplish legitimate business requirements that cannot be attended to on other than the normal workday. The building principal or immediate supervisor shall be notified three days in advance in writing without reason stated, unless an unforeseen emergency arises. When used for emergency purposes, the reason shall be submitted. All unused personal days can be accumulated as sick days.
- 2. An employee covered by Part III of this Agreement shall be granted:
 - (a) Two days' leave of absence with pay for school business, if application is made in writing and approved by the building principal and the Superintendent. Application for more extended leave for school purposes shall be made in writing and shall require Board approval.
 - (b) If needed, two (2) personal business days per year, which shall be with full pay, to accomplish legitimate business requirements that cannot be attended to on other than the normal workday. His/her building principal, or immediate supervisor, shall be notified three (3) days in advance in writing without reason stated, unless an unforeseen emergency arises. When used for emergency purposes the reason shall be submitted. Unused personal days will be accumulated as additional sick days; however, in no event shall more than fifteen (15) days be accumulated in any school year.
- 3. For employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement, absence for personal business shall be allowed by permission of the building principal, and shall be with full pay for two (2) days during the school year. The request shall be made a minimum of three (3) days in advance unless an unforeseen emergency arises. The building principal shall submit a written report to the Superintendent giving information on permissions granted. Unused personal business days shall be added to accumulated sick leave days.
- 4. Each employee covered by Part V of this Agreement is entitled to one (1) personal leave day per year. Application must be made to use it to their immediate supervisor no less than three (3) days in advance and it must be used to accomplish something that could not occur outside their normal workday.

5. For employees covered by Part II or Part III of this Agreement, a personal business day shall not be granted for a day preceding or the day following holidays or vacations and the first and last day of the school year, except by special approval from the Superintendent.

E. FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE

Family leave will be granted, without pay, to eligible employees covered by this Agreement in accordance with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") and the New Jersey Family Leave Act ("NJFLA"), and the applicable regulations issued pursuant to these statutes, and in accordance with the following:

- 1. An employee shall notify the Superintendent of a serious health condition requiring medical leave as soon as it is medically confirmed.
- 2. A request for medical leave shall include a Medical Certification from the treating physician confirming the serious health condition.
- 3. A Medical Certification from the treating physician certifying that the employee is physically able to return to duty shall be furnished to the Board before the employee is permitted to return from medical leave.
- 4. An employee on medical leave under FMLA/NJFLA shall continue to receive health benefits under the same terms and conditions as other employees of the Springfield School District. If, however, the employee fails to return to employment following the expiration of FMLA/NJFLA leave, the employee may be responsible for reimbursing the Springfield School District for the cost of health benefits as provided by law.
- 5. Sick leave must be used concurrent with any period of leave under FMLA, when such leave is needed for the employee's own serious health condition, except if an employee's own serious health condition extends for ten (10) work days or less, then sick leave shall not run concurrent with FMLA leave. If the employee is subsequently absent for reasons related to the same serious health condition, such that the employee's total absence related to the same serious health conditions exceeds ten (10) work days, then sick leave shall be run concurrent with FMLA leave back to the first day of absence for the serious health condition.
- 6. Under normal conditions, pregnancy shall be deemed to be a temporary disability during the four (4) weeks immediately preceding the expected birth of the child and the four (4) weeks following the termination of the pregnancy. If the employee is eligible for FMLA leave, it will run concurrently with any such period of maternity related disability, and sick leave must also be used during any such leave. If the employee is eligible for NJFLA, it will run concurrently with any FMLA leave as permitted by law.

- 7. An employee adopting a child shall be eligible to receive leave under FMLA to care for the child. Any employee planning adoption should notify the Superintendent upon submitting legal application for adoption. Said leave shall commence upon the employee receiving de facto custody of the child or earlier, if necessary to fulfill the requirements for adoption.
- 8. At the time an employee applies for leave hereunder, he or she shall also submit the date on which he or she expects to return to employment. A tenured employee's return date to employment hereunder may be extended for one year following the expiration of any leave entitlement under FMLA/NJFLA and as much longer as may be required to terminate on the next succeeding July I, except that a non-tenured employee's leave may not extend beyond June 30 of the year in which the leave was granted. Any such leave of absence shall be without pay. Employees requesting and receiving an extended unpaid leave of absence hereunder will be required to pay for the entire cost of continuing their medical, prescription, vision and dental benefits during any period of unpaid leave.
- Employees will not accrue seniority during any period of unpaid leave provided under FMLA or NJFLA, or during any period of extended unpaid leave provided hereunder.

F. JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS

Absences from work to attend judicial proceedings shall be permitted as follows:

- For employees covered by Part II of this Agreement, absence from work, by reason of a subpoena by any court shall be allowed with full pay, provided a copy of the subpoena is shown to the Superintendent. If an employee is a party to a suit and is required to appear in court, absence from school shall be with pay less deductions for substitutes. Employees shall be subject to salary deduction equivalent to Jury Duty pay while on paid Jury Duty leave.
- 2. For employees covered by Part III of this Agreement, absences from school by reason of subpoena by any court shall be allowed with full pay, provided a copy of the subpoena is shown to the Superintendent. If an employee is a party to a suit and is required to appear in court, absence from school shall be with pay less deductions for substitutes.
- 3. For employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement:
 - (a) Absences from school by reason of subpoena by any court shall be allowed with full pay, provided the subpoena is filed with the Superintendent. If any employee is a party to a suit, absence from school shall be with pay less deductions for substitutes. (Not deductible from sick leave).

- (b) All personnel called to serve on jury duty shall receive full pay during period of jury duty less the amount of compensation paid to them for jury duty.
- 4. Employees covered by Part V of this Agreement who are called to jury duty shall first attempt to have such service postponed until school is not in session. If the request is not granted, the employee shall receive full pay subject to a salary deduction equivalent to Jury Duty pay for all time served on jury duty.

G. QUARANTINE IN CONTAGIOUS DISEASE

When such quarantine is not because of personal illness, an employee shall be allowed full pay, provided the certificate is filed with the Superintendent. When the quarantine is because of personal illness, Section A shall apply.

H. OPTIONAL LEAVE

1

On the recommendation of the Superintendent, absence in excess of that referred to in Sections A through G may be reviewed by the Board for special consideration, but there shall be no deviation from these rules except by vote of the Board.

ARTICLE 12 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. NONDISCRIMINATION

The Board and the Association agree that there shall be no discrimination, and that all practices, procedures, and policies of the school system shall clearly exemplify that there is no discrimination in the hiring, training, assignment, promotion, transfer, or discipline of employees or in the application or administration of this Agreement on the basis of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sex, domicile, or marital status.

B. SEPARABILITY

If any provisions of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held to be contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.

C. DISTRIBUTION OF AGREEMENT

Copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the joint expense of the Board and the Association within sixty (60) days after this Agreement is signed. This

Agreement shall be presented to all employees now employed, hereafter employed, or considered for employment by the Board.

ARTICLE 13 DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2016 and shall continue in full force and effect until June 30, 2019 when it shall expire unless an extension is agreed to by both parties and expressed in writing prior to that date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year first written.

	JELD EDUCATION ASSOCIATION
By: S	ray, Scheckman
Witness:_	Daren Firm
BOARD (OF SPRII	OF EDUCATION OT THE TOWNSHIP
OF SPRU	

Witness:

PART II - SECRETARIES

ARTICLE 14 WORK YEAR

A. HOLIDAYS

All secretaries and office personnel are governed by the school calendar including all holidays and vacations therein as well as: snow days, work day preceding or following Fourth of July, Fourth of July, Labor Day and a floating holiday that may be used by a secretary any time during the year by giving the Superintendent five (5) days advance notice. The Superintendent must approve/disapprove the request within two (2) days of submission.

Administration may require secretaries to work on snow days, but only when teachers, custodians and administration are similarly required to work.

B. VACATION SCHEDULE

All 12 month secretaries and 12 month office personnel hired after July 1, 1980 shall have the following vacations:

After one year of service
After five years of service
After ten years of service

2 weeks vacation

3 weeks vacation

4 weeks vacation

C DETAILS

- Any 12 month secretary or 12 month office personnel hired September 1
 or after shall have one vacation day for each month of service during the
 school year.
- Seniority rights prevail in vacation preference in each department or school office. Time exchanges are permissible through mutual agreement with the immediate supervisor.
- The 12 month secretaries or 12 month office personnel may schedule his/her vacations throughout the school year, subject to the approval of his/her immediate supervisor.
- 4. The work year for all 12 month employees shall commence on July 1 and shall conclude on June 30.
- 5. The work year for all 10.5 month employees shall commence 7 calendar days prior to September 1, and shall conclude at the end of the 7th calendar day following June 30.

6. Employees may carryover no more than ten (10) days of unused vacation from one year to another in accordance with established Springfield School District practice.

ARTICLE 15 DAILY WORK HOURS

A. September 1 - June 30

- 1. The work day shall consist of 8 hours including 60 minutes uninterrupted lunch hour unless by mutual consent of immediate supervisor and employee. A half workday shall consist of 3½ hours (except during the summer.)
- 2. Daily work hours are 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. Exceptions for time of departure are one-half hour earlier the day before Thanksgiving, Winter recess, and Spring vacation, unless the school calendar calls for one-half day.

B. July 1 - August 31

Daily work hours are: Monday - Thursday -

8 am. to 3 p.m. The work day shall consist of 7 hours including 60 minutes uninterrupted lunch hour. (Unless a later or earlier starting time is mutually agreed upon.)

Friday -

8 a.m. to 12 noon (Unless a later or earlier starting time is mutually agreed upon.)

C. COFFEE BREAKS

One uninterrupted period of 10 minutes in the a.m.

D. At no time will a secretary be expected to perform duties which, by law, require certificated personnel.

ARTICLE 16 OVERTIME

Overtime:

Defined as any time authorized by a supervisor spent at regular duties consistent with this Agreement, either before or after regular daily work hours, or any day other than provided in the work year.

A. COMPENSATION

All overtime after 35 hours per week exclusive of lunch hours will be paid
at the hourly rate. If the employee and his/her immediate supervisor
mutually agree, such overtime may be allowed as equal compensatory
time.

- 2. Any time worked over 40 hours per week will be paid at one and one-half times the hourly rate.
- 3. All work performed on weekends or contractual holidays will be paid for at one and one-half times the hourly rate.
- 4. Work performed during vacations shall be paid at one and one-half times the hourly rate.

B. CALCULATION

The hourly rate shall be determined by dividing the annual salary by 1820, such number being arrived at on the basis of 35 hours per week for 52 weeks.

ARTICLE 17 EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES

A. PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE

Any employee employed prior to January I of any school year shall be given full credit for one (1) year of service toward the next increment step for the following year.

B. RESIGNATION

- 1. An employee who is resigning from his/her position shall give 2 weeks' advance notice.
- 2. Earned vacation shall be pro-rated and paid according to the provisions of Article 14 (Work Year).

C. TERMINATION

- I. A terminated employee shall receive two weeks' notice or two weeks' pay in lieu of notice.
- 2. The terminated employee shall have the privilege of making an appeal to the Superintendent.
- 3. Earned vacation shall be pro-rated and paid according to the provisions of Article 14 (Work Year).

D. NOTIFICATION OF CONTRACT AND SALARY

Employees shall be notified of his/her contract and salary status for the ensuing year within two weeks following signing of the contract and in the case of a multiple year contract, no later than May 15, unless the Springfield School District's Budget is subject to a ballot question and such question is defeated, in which case the notification date shall be no later than May 30.

E. COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED SICK DAYS

1. Unless contrary to law, a secretary who retires pursuant to N.J.P.E.R.S. shall be paid for accumulated unused sick days at the rate of:

	PER DAY	<u>MAXIMUM</u>
2016-17	\$87.02	\$9,573.00
2017-18	\$88.76	\$9,764.00
2018-19	\$90.54	\$9,959.00

 If an employee dies prior to retirement, his/her estate shall receive the above payment.

F. WORKSHOPS, CONFERENCES

A secretary may apply to the Superintendent for permission to attend workshops, conferences or courses which relate to work assignment and which may or may not be scheduled during work time. If the Superintendent approves of the application, an employee shall be reimbursed for the costs incurred. The Superintendent's decision is not grievable.

G. NOTARY

One secretary in the main office of each school and one secretary in the guidance office at the High School shall be reimbursed for the renewal of their notary license. The selection of the secretary to be so reimbursed shall be at the discretion of each building principal.

ARTICLE 18 CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION OR POSITION

- A. Should a secretarial vacancy arise, all secretaries shall be notified by posting and be given equal opportunity to apply for the position.
- B. When an employee changes classification the employee will not lose any years of service.
- C. Selection of the secretary to fill a vacancy will be at the sole discretion of the Board.

ARTICLE 19 SENIORITY

- A. Seniority is defined as the continuous length of service by an employee in a secretarial position in the Springfield School District.
- B. In the event of a reduction in force, non-tenured employees shall be the first employees reduced.

In the event it becomes necessary to reduce tenured employees, the least senior tenured employee shall be the first reduced, provided that at the time of the exercise of seniority, the remaining employees have the skill, ability and experience or training to perform the work which is required.

- C. Employees reduced shall be notified of any vacancy which occurs within twelve (12) months after such reduction. Notice shall be by letter, addressed to the employee's last known address. The employee shall notify the Board within fourteen (14) days if he/she desires to return to the job from which he/she was reduced or to an equivalent job. The employee shall maintain his/her seniority and shall be placed on the satary guide at the level corresponding to his/her seniority.
- D. Seniority and employees' rights under this Agreement shall terminate for the following reasons: (1) if the employee quits; (2) if the employee is terminated and not ordered reinstated; (3) if the employee fails to respond to a Notice of Job Vacancy as provided in the preceding Paragraph C; or (4) after twelve (12) months from the date of reduction.

ARTICLE 20 EVALUATION PROCEDURE

At the annual evaluation of each employee the following procedures shall be used:

- A. An employee shall receive a draft copy of his/her evaluation report.
- B. A conference to discuss the evaluation report shall be held between the employee and his/her evaluator. There shall be, at least, two (2) work days between the receipt of the draft copy of the report and the conference.
- C. Within five (5) work days after the conference, the employee shall receive his/her finalized evaluation report.
- D. Within five (5) work days after receipt of the final report, the employee shall sign the report. The signature shall only indicate receipt of a copy of the report and not agreement with the contents thereof.
- E. Within ten (10) work days of signing the report, the employee may submit a response to the report. The response shall be submitted to the Superintendent and shall be attached to the file copy of the report.

ARTICLE 21 SALARY GUIDES

Eligibility for longevity increases occur when secretaries attain maximum step:

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19
Longevity after 10 years	\$1,086	\$1,108	\$1,130

Longevity after 15 years	\$2,173	\$2,216	\$2,260
Longevity after 19 years	\$4,350	\$4,437	\$4,526

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION Salary Guide Secretaries 2016-17

(Column G) (Column A) (Column B) (Column C) (Column D) (Column E) (Column F) SG 2016-17 SG 2016-17 SG 2016 - 17 SupCST 12 Gen 12 Clerk SupCST 10.5 BKKP 12.0 PS Step 10.5 PS 33,211 29,406 S 32,407 S 36,327 \$ 33,211 38,203 30,470 1 36,984 S 33,803 5 32,996 \$ \$ 29,941 33,803 \$ 38,830 S 2 \$ 31,007 S 37,503 34,259 30,337 S 33,441 \$ 39,321 \$ \$ S 34,259 3 \$ 31,406 38,254 S 30,956 \$ 34,111 S 34,943 S 40,048 \$ 34,943 \$ 4 \$ 32,028 \$ S 34,859 S 39,088 35,711 31,609 40,921 S 35,711 \$ 32,728 5 5 S 39,936 \$ 36,499 35,630 \$ 32,274 \$ 5 41,814 \$ 36,499 \$ 33,446 \$ б 40,822 S 37,313 32,967 36,423 \$ S 42,743 S 7 \$ 34,188 S 37,313 41,738 \$ 37,242 S 38,154 43,700 33,683 \$ 34,954 S 38,154 S 8 \$ 41,861 S 38,267 S 37,352 33,782 43,829 \$ W S 35,057 Ş 38,267 S 41,984 \$ 38,379 188,66 37,462 S 43,958 S ٧ \$ 35,160 \$ 38,379 S 38,493 37,573 5 42,108 S 33,981 S \$ U \$ 35,264 5 38,493 S 44,088 42,928 \$ 39,313 34,802 38,393 S S 44,908 \$ \$ 36,084 \$ 39,313 S Ţ 43,490 8 39,728 38,770 \$ 35,033 S 39,728 \$ 45,550 S S 36,368 \$ S 44,008 \$ 40,094 39,098 \$ 35,211 S S 46,150 \$ 5 36,599 \$ 40,094 R 44,488 \$ 40,144 S 39,123 S \$ 46,711 \$ 35,341 \$ 5 40,144 36,644 Q 44,693 \$ \$ 41,103 40,060 46,981 \$ 35,261 \$ 41,103 S S 37,517 \$ P 45,773 S 41,912 S 36,420 \$ 40,855 4B,116 \$ 38,255 \$ 41,912 \$ \$ 0 46,691 S 42,731 41,648 \$ S 36,916 \$ 49,075 39,000 \$ 42,731 S \$ N 47,606 \$ 43,765 37,550 Ŝ 42,393 \$ 50,032 S 43,765 \$ 39,942 \$ M 48,46B S 45,140 S 43,439 S 38,471 50,944 \$ 45,140 \$ 41,195 L 49,682 S 46,549 39,692 \$ 44,544 S \$ 42,479 46,549 52,260 S K \$ 50,957 \$ 47,828 45,486 40,944 \$ 5 47,828 \$ 53,617 43,644 S 52,043 \$ 49,223 46,534 \$ 42,070 S 5 49,223 \$ 54,833 5 1 \$ 44,915 53,256 \$ 51,003 47,919 43,308 \$ 51,003 \$ 56,167 S 46,538 2 Н \$ 54,858 53,010 49,512 44,881 \$ 53,010 S 57,893 \$ \$ \$ 48,365 G 56,701 54,255 50,400 46,655 \$ \$ 49,500 S 54,255 \$ 59,900 \$ \$ F 57,724 55,457 51,251 47,758 \$ S \$ 55,457 \$ 57,777 S 50,594 S E 58,707 57,908 48,823 \$ 52,452 S \$ 57,908 S 62,114 52,827 \$ D 5 60,099 60,310 53,595 \$ S 51,010 S 55,016 \$ 60,310 \$ 64,470 \$ C \$ 61,420 S 63,512 55,493 \$ S 53,125 57,933 \$ 63,512 S 66,741 5 B \$ 63,613 S S 55,950 S \$ 69,920 **S** S A S

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION Salary Guide Secretaries 2017-18

(Column E) (Column F) (Column G) (Column B) (Column C) (Column D) (Column A) SG 2017-18 SG 2017-18 SG 2017-18 SG 2017-18 SG 2017-18 SG 2017-18 SG 2017 - 18 SupCST 12 Gen 12 SupCST 10.5 12.0 PS BKKP Cłerk Step 10.5 PS 38,967 37,054 S 33,875 \$ 29,994 \$ 33,055 \$ 5 31,080 S 33,875 S 1 37,724 5 34,479 30,540 S 33,656 \$ 31,627 \$ 34,479 \$ 39,606 \$ 2 \$ 34,109 S 38,253 2 34,944 30,944 \$ 32,034 S 34,944 S 40,108 \$ 3 S 39,019 \$ 40,849 31,576 \$ 34,793 35,642 32,668 S 35,642 \$ 4 S 36,425 41,740 32,241 35,556 39,870 36,425 S \$ 33,382 S 5 S 40,735 37,229 42,650 32,919 36,343 \$ 37,229 \$ \$ \$ \$ 34,115 \$ 6 37,151 41,639 38,060 33,627 \$ \$ 38,060 5 43,598 \$ \$ 7 \$ 34,872 S 42,572 38,917 34,356 S 37,987 \$ \$ 38,917 S 44,574 \$ \$ 35,653 \$ 8 42,698 39,032 34,457 \$ 38,099 \$ 5 39,032 \$ 44,706 \$ W \$ 35,758 S 42,824 \$ 39,147 38,211 S S 34,559 \$ ٧ S 35,863 S 39,147 S 44,837 42,950 S 39,263 S 44,970 \$ 34,661 \$ 38,324 S 35,969 \$ 39,263 \$ U S 39,161 43,787 40,099 40,099 45,806 35,498 \$ \$ S S T \$ 36,806 \$ 44,360 40,523 35,733 39,546 \$ \$ S \$ 46,461 S S \$ 37,096 5 40,523 44,888 40,896 \$ 35,915 39,880 \$ 40,896 S 47,073 S \$ R S 37,331 \$ 45,378 \$ 40,947 40,947 36,048 S 39,905 S S 47,646 \$ Q \$ 37,377 5 45,587 \$ 41,925 35,966 40,862 \$ 41,925 47,921 \$ S \$ 38,268 \$ \$ 46,688 \$ 42,751 \$ 37,149 41,672 O \$ 39,020 S 42,751 49,079 47,625 43,585 \$ 50,057 37,655 42,481 S 39,780 S 43,585 S \$ N 43,241 48,559 44,640 38,301 S 40,741 \$ 44,640 \$ 51,033 \$ \$ M 49,437 44,308 46,043 46,043 39,240 S \$ 42,019 \$ \$ 51,963 5 5 L 50,675 47,480 47,480 53,305 \$ 40,485 \$ 45,434 S S K \$ 43,328 \$ \$ 51,976 54,690 41,762 \$ 46,396 S S 48,784 44,517 \$ 48,784 S S \$ 47,465 \$ 53,084 \$ 50,207 42,911 S \$ 45,813 50,207 \$ 55,930 \$ ı \$ 54,321 \$ 52,024 57,290 48,877 47,468 \$ 52,024 S \$ 44,174 \$ H \$ 55,956 \$ 54,070 45,779 50,502 S \$ 54,070 \$ 59,051 \$ S G 5 49,332 57,835 \$ 55,340 47,588 51,408 5 55,340 S 61,098 \$ \$ F \$ 50,490 S 58,878 S 56,566 52,276 56,566 \$ 58,932 \$ 48,713 S S E S 51,606 S 59,881 \$ 59,066 59,066 S 63,356 S 49,799 5 53,501 S \$ 53,884 S D 61,517 54,667 S 61,301 5 65,760 52,030 \$ 61,517 S S C 5 56,116 S 62,649 \$ 56,603 \$ 64,782 54,187 \$ \$ 59,092 \$ 64,782 S 68,076 S В 64,885 \$

71,318 \$

\$

\$

\$

57,069

\$

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION Salary Guide Secretaries 2018-19

(Column F) (Column G) (Column A) (Column B) (Column C) (Column D) (Column E) SG 2018 - 19 SupCST 10.5 SupCST 12 Step 10.5 PS 12.0 PS BKKP Clerk S 33,731 37,812 34,568 S 31,715 S 34,568 \$ 39,764 30,607 S ł 38,496 \$ \$ 32,274 S 35,184 S 40,416 S 31,165 \$ 34,345 S 35,184 2 32,689 \$ 35,659 S 40,928 S 31,577 \$ 34,807 \$ 39,035 5 35,659 3 \$ 32,221 S 35,505 5 39,818 \$ 36,371 4 \$ 33,336 \$ 36,371 41,685 \$ 42,594 32,901 36,284 S 40,685 \$ 37,170 5 \$ 34,065 \$ 37,170 \$ 34,813 S 37,991 43,523 33,593 37,086 41,568 37,991 6 \$ \$ 38,838 44,490 34,315 37,911 42,491 38,838 7 \$ 35,585 S 5 \$ \$ 39,713 45,486 \$ 35,059 \$ 38,764 S 43,443 \$ 39,713 8 S 36,382 \$ S 39,830 \$ 45,620 \$ 35,162 S 38,878 \$ 43,571 S 39,830 W S 36,489 S 5 39,948 S 45,755 S 35,266 \$ 38,993 5 43,700 S 39,948 ٧ 36,597 \$ \$ \$ 35,370 S 39,108 \$ 43,829 \$ 40,066 \$ 36,705 S 40,066 45,890 U 39,962 S 44,682 S 40,919 T S 37,559 \$ 40,919 \$ 46,743 S 36,224 \$ S 47,412 S 36,464 \$ 40,355 \$ 45,267 \$ 41,352 S S 37,854 S 41,352 48,036 36,649 5 40,696 \$ 45,806 \$ 41,733 S 41,733 S S R 38,095 \$ 36,785 40,722 \$ 46,306 \$ 41,784 5 S S \$ 38,141 41,784 48,620 Q 46,520 42,783 42,783 48,901 \$ 36,701 \$ 41,698 S \$ \$ 39,050 \$ 2 P 47,643 S 43,625 37,909 S 42,524 \$ 43,625 S 50,083 \$ 0 \$ 39,818 \$ 48,599 S 44,477 38,425 43,350 S 44,477 Ŝ \$ 40,594 51,081 N 49,552 S 45,553 45,553 52,077 39.084 44,126 \$ 41,574 \$ М S 40,043 45,214 50,449 46,985 42,879 46,985 53,026 \$ \$ S \$ 51,712 41,314 46,364 48,451 44,21\$ [\$ K S 5 48,451 S 54,395 \$ S 53,039 47,345 49,782 45,428 42,617 5 j \$ S 49,782 \$ 55,808 S \$ \$ 46,750 \$ 51,235 S 57,074 S 43,789 S 48,436 \$ 54,170 S 51,235 E 55,432 53,088 S \$ \$ 58,462 S 45,078 S 49,877 S S 48,439 53,088 Н 51,535 57,100 \$ 55,176 S 60,259 \$ 46,715 \$ S \$ 50,341 S 55,176 G 59,018 \$ 56,472 56,472 S 62,348 S 48,561 52,460 5 F \$ 51,523 S 49,710 \$ 60,083 57,724 57,724 S \$ 53,345 S \$ S 60,138 E 52,662 50,818 54,595 S 61,106 \$ 60,275 \$ S 60,275 S 64,652 S D 54,986 \$ 62,555 \$ 62,775 57,264 53,095 \$ 55,786 5 C S \$ 62,775 \$ 67,105 S 63,930 55,296 \$ 57,761 \$ S 66,108 S 60,301 \$ 66,108 \$ 69,468 S B 66,213 S 72,777 S 58,236 \$ 5 S S S

PART III - TEACHERS

ARTICLE 22 PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND RIGHTS

A. TIME AND FUNCTION

1. Elementary School Workday

- a. The workday shall be seven hours and five minutes in length. Teachers shall check in at least fifteen (15) minutes before school begins and remain at least thirty (30) minutes following the dismissal of classes before checking out. The school day begins when the bell rings and students enter the building, except as otherwise provided.
- b. Lunch period in the elementary school shall be sixty (60) minutes duty free, except as provided under Non-Teaching Duties.
- c. Elementary School teachers shall be provided five (5) planning periods per week, which shall be scheduled one (1) planning period per day, whenever possible, of which one (1) such period shall be a team planning period. If a teacher does not receive five (5) planning periods per week, the teacher shall be compensated for the lost period(s) at the class coverage rate then in effect.
- d. Any teacher who is assigned playground supervision pursuant to Section B, Article 23 of Part III of this Agreement, shall be required to check in at least twenty (20) minutes before school begins on such day and remain at least twenty (20) minutes following the dismissal of classes before checking out on such day; provided that such teacher shall be required to remain at least thirty (30) minutes following the dismissal of classes before checking out if there are conferences, workshops, professional development or staff meetings on any such day.

2. Middle School Workday

- a. Teachers shall check in at least five (5) minutes before school begins and remain at least fifteen (15) minutes following the dismissal of classes before checking out. Teachers assigned to the Middle School will not be required to work more than a seven hour and 5 minute in-school workday, except as otherwise provided herein (example: meeting dates).
- b. The Middle School schedule will contain a homeroom period and nine (9) equal length periods per day as set forth below. The

Middle School Schedule will contain the following periods each week:

- Twenty-six (26) Instructional/Duty periods and two additional duty periods.
- Five (5) teacher preparation periods (one (1) per day).
- Five (5) duty free lunch periods (one (1) per day).
- Two (2) Team Meeting Periods.
- Five (5) teacher/pupil assistance communication periods (TPAC) (one (1) per day).

Teachers assigned by the Board to an instructional/duty period beyond 26 shall be compensated an additional one twenty-fifth (1/25th) of his/her annual salary for each such additional period up to a maximum of four twenty-fifths (4/25ths) of his/her annual salary.

- c. The Middle School teachers shall have a duty-free lunch period, which, whenever possible, shall be scheduled during the same time that lunch is scheduled for the students in the Middle School.
- d. The Board may institute an early or late period. Teachers assigned thereto shall not be required to work more than a seven (7) hour and 5 minute in-school workday. Such early or late periods shall primarily be utilized for art, gifted and talented courses, music, media center and physical education and in isolated subject areas where due to scheduling constraints, students would otherwise not be able to take a full complement of electives. The Administration shall make every effort to avoid scheduling teachers for early or late periods on meeting days (Wednesdays, Section C.). If a teacher is normally scheduled to leave, but has to wait for a meeting, the teacher shall be given compensatory time off on another day equal to the time that the teacher waited for the meeting to start.
- e. During the TPAC period, teachers will:
 - (1) Communicate with students and parents.
 - (2) Meet with department chairs and/or counselors.
 - (3) Meet with building principal and/or vice-principal.
 - (4) Participate in parent conferences.
 - (5) Perform curriculum work.
 - (6) Participate in subject resource center and/or individual student support.

- (7) Perform any other professional duties, responsibilities or activities, with prior approval of the Administration, which shall not be unreasonably denied.
- f. (1) Teachers who are assigned during their TPAC period to perform services in a subject area resource center or individual pupil support shall be compensated as follows in any school year, which shall be added to the teachers' base salaries for pension purposes in accordance with the Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) Rules and Regulations.

1	Period Rate	<u>Annual</u> Maximum
2016-17	\$29.57	\$2,957
2017-18	\$30.16	\$ 3,016
2018-19	\$30.76	\$3,076

(2) Teachers who are assigned to subject area resource centers shall be compensated as follows for five (5) periods per week throughout the school year. A teacher assigned to less than five (5) periods per week shall receive the appropriate pro-rata portion.

2015-17	\$ 2,957
2017-18	\$3,016
2018-19	\$3.076

(3) Teachers who reach the above maximums through payment of a combination of assignments rather than an annual assignment of five (5) classes per week shall also be compensated to the specified maximum per annum. Should such a teacher reach that maximum amount prior to the end of the school year, he/she may be required to continue to perform such services through the remainder of the school year without additional compensation.

3. High School Workday

The regular high school workday shall contain the following elements:

- a. Seven (7) hours and five (5) minutes.
- b. Nine (9) equal length periods; provided that one period may be extended by nine (9) minutes in order to provide for announcements and other similar homeroom activities.

- The nine (9) periods referenced in clause (b) of this paragraph shall consist of:
 - (1) Five (5) instructional periods
 - (2) One (1) duty period
 - (3) One (1) preparation period
 - (4) One (1) duty-free lunch period
 - (5) One (1) teacher/pupil assistance communication period (TPAC)
- d. During the TPAC period, teachers will:
 - (1) Communicate with students and parents.
 - (2) Meet with department chairs and/or counselors.
 - (3) Meet with building principal and/or vice-principal.
 - (4) Participate in parent conferences.
 - (5) Perform curriculum work.
 - (6) Participate in subject resource center and/or individual student support.
 - (7) Perform any other professional duties, responsibilities or adtivities, with prior approval of the Administration, which shall not be unreasonably denied.
- e. (1) Teachers who are assigned during their TPAC period to perform services in a subject area resource center or individual pupil support shall be compensated as follows in any school year, which shall be added to the teachers' base salaries for pension purposes in accordance with the Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) Rules and Regulations.

	Period Rate	Annual Maximum		
2016-17	\$29.57	\$2,957		
2017-18	\$30.16	\$ 3,016		
2018-19	\$30.76	\$3,076		

(2) Teachers who are assigned to subject area resource centers shall be compensated as follows for five (5) periods per week throughout the school year. A teacher assigned to less than five (5) periods per week shall receive the appropriate pro-rata portion of \$2,601.

2016-17	\$2,957
2017-18	\$3,016
2018-19	\$3,076

- (3) Teachers who reach the above maximum through payment of a combination of assignments rather than an annual assignment of five (5) classes per week shall also be compensated to the specified maximum per annum. Should such a teacher reach that maximum amount prior to the end of the school year, he/she may be required to continue to perform services through the remainder of the school year without additional compensation.
- f. (1) Teachers may be assigned by the Board to a sixth (6th) instructional period in addition to the normal daily schedule described above. Teachers so assigned for more than one (1) pay period, but less than a semester (90 days), shall be compensated based on the months worked, one-tenth for each month worked. Teachers so assigned for less than one (1) pay period shall be compensated based on the daily rate for the work performed by the employee.
 - (2) High School science teachers may be assigned up to twenty-eight (28) instructional periods per week. Any high school science teacher who is assigned to more than twenty-five (25) instructional periods per week shall be relieved of his/her duty periods.
- 4. Exceptions for the time of departure are Fridays (except when a parent conference has been arranged), days preceding holidays, afternoons of P.T.A meetings, lunch duty days for elementary teachers, or when permission has been obtained from the building principal or immediate supervisor.
- It is understood that part of the teachers' professional responsibilities includes assisting students in extra help, and make-up, in addition to fulfilling his/her other professional responsibilities.
- 6. The school year for teachers shall consist of 183 professional days subject to the following:
 - a. There shall be a half-day (single session day) the day before winter break, and on the last day of school.
 - b. A professional development day shall take place on Election Day.

B. PROFESSIONAL PERIODS

- 1. Anticipating the professional cooperation of the staff in effecting this provision, regular teachers shall not be used as substitutes, thereby depriving them of his/her professional periods.
- 2. In cases where teachers are used as substitutes during his/her professional periods, they shall be paid as follows:

\$34.30 for 2016-17 \$34.99 for 2017-18 \$35.69 for 2018-19

3. In cases where the entire class is divided between two or more teachers, each teacher teaching any part of the split class shall receive the rate per period in Paragraph B.2 above divided by the number of teachers involved, except that no individual shall receive less than one-third of the per period rate.

C. MEETING DATES

Teachers may be required to remain after the end of the regular workday, without compensation, for the purpose of attending faculty, curriculum or professional meetings. Such meetings will be scheduled for the first three (3) school Wednesdays each month for which the employee shall receive no additional compensation. A teacher shall not be required to serve on more than one (1) curriculum committee at a time.

D. RELEASE

Teachers may be released from attending Wednesday curriculum committee meetings if they are participating in writing or revising curriculum during the school year. The Superintendent or his/her designee will advertise such projects at the beginning of the year. This curriculum writing could take place more intensely at the beginning of the year. Once teachers have completed his/her curriculum work and had it approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee, they may be released from attending future curriculum meetings in that school year.

E. CURRICULUM WRITING

Curriculum writing shall be a professional responsibility of the teachers to be accomplished within the school year. All efforts will be taken not to allocate more than one new curriculum per assignment.

ARTICLE 23 NON-TEACHING DUTIES

A. LUNCH DUTY

- 1. In the elementary schools, the building principals will seek volunteers to assume lunch duty. In the event that there is an insufficient number of volunteers, the building principal may schedule all staff members for lunch duty on a rotating basis, provided no teacher is deprived of a lunch period. The administration will use its best efforts to guarantee that teachers will not have more than two (2) lunch duty periods per month. Teachers who are scheduled for lunch duty shall accrue compensatory time equal to the time on duty. Teachers may leave one-half (½) hour early on days mutually agreed to by the teacher and building principal, to be taken as soon as practicable thereafter.
- 2. In the middle school, the building principal may schedule teachers for lunchroom and playground supervision with his/her consent. However, if there is not a sufficient number of consenting teachers, then the building principal will determine the assignment of teachers to such duties, provided the teachers are not deprived of a regular professional or lunch period.

B. PLAYGROUND SUPERVISION

Before-school coverage of the playground shall be shared equally by all teachers, except librarians, in his/her respective buildings.

C. TRAVEL

Whenever possible, administrators will provide ten (10) minutes for teachers to travel between buildings during a workday. Traveling teachers will not be assigned duties on the days they travel.

D. CONFERENCES

- 1. Conferences shall be held in grades pre-kindergarten through 8 twice during the school year.
- 2. Conferences for the 2016-17 school year shall consist of three days as follows: (i) the first day shall consist of morning conferences with a delayed opening for students, (ii) the second day shall consist of an early dismissal for students with afternoon conferences through the end of the school day and (iii) the third day shall consist of an early dismissal for students with evening conferences which shall run from 6:30 p.m. until 8:30 p.m.
- 3. After the 2016-17 school year, conferences shall consist of two days as follows: (i) the first day shall consist of morning conferences with a delayed

opening for students and (ii) the second day shall consist of an early dismissal for students with afternoon conferences through the end of the school day and evening conferences which shall run from 6:30 p.m. until 8:30 p.m.

ARTICLE 24 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

A. TUITION GRANTS

The program for special grants is a plan designated to help maintain instructional service at the highest level of quality and efficiency for certificated personnel. It is understood that satisfactory service is a prerequisite.

B. ELIGIBILITY

Teachers may apply to the Superintendent for the following non-cumulative grant, without regard to the number of credits said applicant may take per calendar year during the term of this Agreement:

Maximum Grant Annual Budgetary Cap
\$2,600 \$45,000

The calendar year is defined in the same manner as the school budget year of July I through June 301 The tuition costs are those incurred outside school hours in connection with courses of study directly related to his/her work in the Springfield School District. Non-tenured teachers shall be eligible to apply for grants during May of the first year and may begin the grant in the fall of his/her second year of employment; however, non-tenured teachers cannot receive grants before tenured teachers. Grant monies for approved courses shall first be distributed equally among tenured teachers, with any remaining balance being equally distributed to non-tenured teachers. In no case shall a grant to any teacher exceed \$2,600.

C. PROCEDURE

- 1. The applicant must submit through the immediate supervisor to the Superintendent a brief outline of the purpose for which the grant is to be expended. If the proposed program is approved by the Superintendent, it is then brought to the attention of the Board for consideration. The applicant will be notified of the Board's decision as soon as is practical, but in any case no later than December 1 for the spring semester and May 1 for the summer or fall semesters.
- Application for the summer or fall semesters must be submitted to the immediate supervisor not later than March 1 of the year preceding the one in which the grant is to be expended. For the spring semester, applications must be submitted not later than November 1.

- 3. It is expected that those expending such grants shall not do so unless they plan to spend another year in the employ of the Springfield School District. In the event that the grant recipient resigns, except for resignation at retirement, within the school year immediately following the completion of the grant, the recipient shall reimburse the full amount of the grant to the Board.
- 4. Requests for payment of grants shall be submitted on the official form, accompanied by a regular voucher. Payment for said grants shall be contingent upon receiving a "C" grade or better.
- 5. Tuition fees received through Federal grants, etc., may not be duplicated by utilization of this provision of this Agreement. Tuition grants, subject to the above conditions, may be awarded during sabbatical leave.

D. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND ACTIVITIES- 100 HOUR REQUIREMENT

1. Purpose

The professional development program is for the purpose of increasing teacher expertise that culminates in enhanced student learning and attainment of the core curriculum standards, and also assists the employee in meeting the professional development standards established in the New Jersey Administrative Code.

2. Local Professional Development Committee

The Board agrees to establish a Professional Development Committee whose structure and function will be governed by New Jersey Administrative Code.

3. Resources Provided to Committee by the Board

- a. Secretarial Where appropriate a secretary will be assigned to the committee for a maximum of 10 hours. If additional secretarial time is needed, the Chairman will request the need for additional time in writing from the Superintendent, and a decision will be based on the documented need.
- b. Budget An operating budget for supplies will be allocated for committee administrative work as follows:

2016-17 - \$237

2017-18 - \$241

2018-19 - \$246

c. Time - I hour per month of released time during the workday will be provided to teaching staff members serving on the committee (10 hours per year). In the event additional time is needed to conduct the business of the committee during the workday, special requests may be submitted to the Superintendent for his/her approval.

4. Responsibilities, Rules, and Conduct of the Committee

- a. The committee will develop each year a list of its major responsibilities and goals, and select a chairperson who will have the responsibility of overseeing the meeting according to "Robert's Rules of Order."
- b. The Chairperson, with the input of the committee, will create an agenda for each meeting. He/she will also be responsible for forwarding materials to be discussed and the agenda to the committee members one week prior to the meeting.
- c. The Chairperson shall submit a copy of all recommendations that result from the committee's business to the County Professional Development Board and to the Superintendent within 10 days. It is also advisable that the Chairperson seek the Superintendent's input to insure that the committee's recommendations fall within budgetary parameters, Springfield School District policy, and Board guidelines for Springfield School District priorities.
- d. The Chairperson of the committee, if he/she is a member of the bargaining unit, will receive a stipend for the additional work required for developing agendas, keeping minutes of the meetings, and conducting the business of the committee as follows:

2016-17 - \$297 2017-18 - \$303 2018-19 - \$309

e. Members of the committee, who are present for a minimum of 10 hours of committee meeting time, shall accrue 10 hours of professional development credit each year provided such service is identified in the PDP with the specific goals outlined. In the event the administrative guidelines exceed the 10 hour maximum, the members of the committee who exceed this maximum will accrue professional development credit in accordance with the State of New Jersey guidelines for each hour of additional service.

5. Programs, Workshops, Seminars, Conferences, and In-Service

- a. The Springfield School District will provide a variety of professional development activities that meets State of New Jersey standards for "what counts" for professional development credit. These in-service workshops, conferences, and programs will be conducted with the intent to assist the employee in meeting the five-year requirement for professional development.
- b. Professional Development programs will be developed with the intent of meeting the State of New Jersey guidelines for professional development credit and Springfield School District priorities.
- c. Credit for Advancement on Salary Guides

Professional Development programs conducted outside of the regular workday and approved by the Superintendent or operated by the Springfield School District under the graduate credit equivalency program shall qualify for advancement on the salary guide. One graduate credit equivalent unit shall be accrued for 15 hours of in-class course work successfully completed.

d. Expenses and Reimbursement for "out of district" workshops, seminars, and conferences

Staff requesting to attend a conference, seminar, or workshop must submit the Request Form and reports required by Springfield School District policy and receive administrative approval to participate in the requested staff development activity. If the staff member is seeking reimbursement of expenses (i.e. registration fees, travel, etc.), these items must be itemized in the original request. Once approval is granted and the professional development activity is completed, the staff member must submit expense receipts attached to the purchase requisition approved by the supervisor and the required summary report if reimbursement of expenses is to be processed by the business office.

6. Record Keeping of Professional Development Credit Hours

a. Each teacher will maintain a log of his/her professional development activities and credit hours on the appropriate Springfield School District forms, and submit the record as part of the annual evaluation process and completion of his/her Professional Development Plan. The Springfield School District will provide a summary of professional development credit as part of the annual summative evaluation.

b. Discrepancies between the teacher's record and the Springfield School District's record must be identified by the employee within 30 days of receipt of the official professional development credit record forwarded each year. This process will allow the Springfield School District and employee an opportunity to adjust the record if necessary. If discrepancies are not identified within 30 days of receipt of the Springfield School District record, the professional development credit records maintained by the Springfield School District will be entered as the record of cumulative progress toward the 100 hour professional development requirement as specified in the New Jersey Administrative Code.

ARTICLE 25 TEACHER EVALUATION

Teacher evaluations shall be conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations of the State of New Jersey.

ARTICLE 26 SABBATICAL LEAVE

A. PURPOSE

The policy of sabbatical leave is a plan designed to help maintain and improve the quality and efficiency of instruction services to the children of the Springfield Public Schools. This privilege is granted to certificated employees in order that they may extend their professional competence and thus better serve the Springfield School District.

B. APPLICATION

Preliminary application for sabbatical leave shall be made prior to December 15 of the academic year previous to the year for which the leave of absence is desired. The purpose, date of this application, and length of service will be factors in determining the number of grants within the budgetary limits for that year. The final application must be submitted by February 15. Due consideration shall be given to the reasonable and equitable distribution of the applications among the different schools and departments. The Board shall give notice of the approval for sabbatical leave, or rejection, together with an explanation thereof, no later than April 1 of the year previous to the academic year for which the leave is requested.

C. CONDITIONS

1. Since the policy for sabbatical leave is solely to promote the more efficient conduct of the schools, no application for such leave shall be recommended by the Superintendent or approved by the Board unless, after considered judgment, the professional competence of the staff

member and the general efficiency of the Springfield School District will thereby be benefited.

- 2. During any sabbatical leave, the employee shall not engage in any employment for remuneration without approval of the Superintendent and shall devote the major portion of his/her time and effort toward the purpose of the grant.
- 3. As a condition of sabbatical leave, the employee shall agree that if he/she does not continue in service for two years after expiration of the leave of absence, he/she shall be required to repay the Board a sum of money bearing the same ratio to the amount of salary received while on leave of absence that the unperformed part of the subsequent two years of service bears to the full two years, unless such employee is incapacitated, has been discharged without cause, or has been released by the Board from this obligation.
- 4. If the Superintendent has reason to believe that an employee on sabbatical leave is not fulfilling the purpose for which the leave of absence was granted, he/she shall report this fact to the Board. The Board may eliminate the leave of absence for non-fulfillment of purpose after giving the employee involved the opportunity of a hearing.
- 5. If a teacher on sabbatical leave shall ascertain that she is pregnant, she shall immediately report this fact to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall, after considering her doctor's report, recommend to the Board whether or not the leave shall continue, dependent upon the probability of the successful completion of the sabbatical program. Transfer to maternity leave shall be governed by the maternity leave policy.
- 6. An employee on sabbatical shall submit to the Superintendent one interim report that states the courses or the activities that he/she is engaged in while on leave.

D. ELIGIBILITY

- 1. Any employee who has completed seven (7) or more years of satisfactory service in the Springfield School District may, on the recommendation of the Superintendent and the approval of the Board, be granted a leave of absence for one academic year or one-half (1/2) of an academic year for the purpose of professional improvement through study and research. Such study shall be directly connected with his/her work in the Springfield School District. The employee's application for a sabbatical shall outline in detail the proposed professional study plan for administrative review.
- 2. Any employee shall be eligible for another sabbatical leave after he/she has had seven (7) additional school years of service in the Springfield

School District. This time limit may be waived at the discretion of the Board.

E. SALARY

The recipient shall receive, in lieu of salary, a sum equal to two-thirds (2/3) of the salary to which the teacher would otherwise be entitled if not on leave, less such regular deduction for government income tax, Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund and other deductions as required by law or that are customary in the Springfield School District. Said sum shall be paid in installments in accordance with the general time schedule for payment of salaries to employees in the regular employ of the Springfield School District.

F. RETURN

- I. An employee on sabbatical leave shall notify the Superintendent in writing on or before March 1 of that year of his/her intention to return to duty. Failure to give such information on the part of the employee on leave will be interpreted as an indication that such employee does not wish to return to the employ of the Board. Every employee on sabbatical leave shall present a written report to the Superintendent covering the studies engaged in while on sabbatical leave and the benefits anticipated therefrom. Such report is due prior to August 1, but in no event later than two months after the completion of the sabbatical program.
- 2. Upon satisfactory completion of the sabbatical leave, the employee will be returned to service at a salary on the same basis as if he/she had rendered continued and satisfactory service in the Springfield School District during the interim.

ARTICLE 27 PROMOTIONS, VACANCIES OR REDUCTIONS IN FORCE

A. POSTING POSITIONS

- 1. During the school year, when the Superintendent is aware that a vacancy will exist in a professional position which the Board decides to fill, the Superintendent shall post a notice of this vacancy in each building. Professional positions shall include after-school advising, coaching, teaching and similar positions for which a stipend is paid. This notice shall be posted at least fifteen (15) days before the final date when applications must be submitted.
- 2. During the summer, if a professional position becomes vacant, the Superintendent shall mail a notice of this vacancy to the Association President or his/her designee at least fifteen (15) days before the final date when applications must be submitted.

- 3. Provisions of the above items do not apply where a member of the Association resigns without thirty (30) days' notice.
- 4. Teachers desiring a change in grade and/or subject assignment for the next school year may file a written statement to this effect with the Superintendent no later than April 30th of the current school year.

B. FILLING POSITIONS

It is recognized that appointment to the vacancy will be made at the discretion of the Board, and that the Board is not limited to making appointments from within the Springfield School District.

C. REDUCTION IN FORCE

If a reduction in personnel is being considered which will result in the layoff of a teacher, the Board or its designee shall notify the teacher affected as soon as practical before the layoff is to take place. The Board shall retain the prerogative to determine, in its sole discretion, if and when a reduction in force will take place.

ARTICLE 28 TEACHER ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFERS

A. NOTIFICATION

- All presently employed teachers' shall be given written notice of their class, subject, building and room for the forthcoming year no later than June I, whenever possible.
- 2. If a teacher is transferred from one building to another or is moved from one room to another within a building, the teacher shall be entitled to assistance to pack and unpack materials and supplies. The nature and extent of the assistance to be provided, and all arrangements to meet the provisions of this paragraph shall be made by the building principal.
- 3. If a teacher is assigned to a new subject area, then supplies, textbooks and curriculum materials will be delivered to the teacher's classroom before the start of the school year.

B. CLARIFICATION MEETINGS

An involuntary transfer or reassignment shall be made only after a meeting between the teacher involved and the building principal at which time the teacher shall be notified of the reason therefore. In the event that a teacher objects to the transfer or reassignment at this meeting, upon the request of the teacher, the Superintendent shall meet with him/her. The teacher may, at his/her option, have an Association representative present at such meeting.

C. QUALIFICATIONS

It is recognized that circumstances may occur after June 1 which may require a change in above assignment or make it impractical to have the meeting referred to in Paragraph B above. Involuntary transfers or reassignments shall not be made arbitrarily, capriciously or for punitive reasons.

D. REPLACEMENT ASSIGNMENTS

- 1. When a teacher covered under this Agreement dies, resigns or takes an unpaid leave of absence for the remainder of the school year and the Board decides to fill the vacancy with a contractual appointment, and such event occurs prior to June 1, the Board shall fill the vacancy with a contractual appointment, based on salary guide with benefits; provided that no benefits shall be provided if the teacher on the unpaid leave of absence is receiving benefits. Selection of the appointee will be made at the discretion of the Board.
- 2. When a teacher covered under this Agreement takes an unpaid leave of absence or takes an extended sick leave utilizing his/her accumulated sick feave days for less than the remainder of the school year, the Board shall have the option, at the discretion and recommendation of the Superintendent, to fill the vacancy with a contractual appointment, based upon the salary guide with benefits; provided that no benefits shall be provided if the teacher on the leave is receiving benefits. Selection of the appointee will be made at the discretion of the Board.

ARTICLE 29 PROFESSIONAL BUSINESS LEAVE

- Two days' leave of absence with pay may be granted for school business, if application is made in writing and approved by the building principal and the Superintendent.
- 2. Application for more extended leave for school purposes shall be made in writing and shall require Board approval.

ARTICLE 30 TEACHER-ADMINISTRATIVE-BOARD COMMITTEE

A. PURPOSE

The major concern of any school district is to promote the educational welfare of all of its students. In accordance with this purpose the committee shall function to:

 Discuss openly and informally any educational issue pertinent to the Springfield School District.

- 2. Foster a spirit of professional growth and develop a concept of mutual cooperation and understanding.
- The committee shall not be a forum to discuss terms and conditions of employment subject to the provisions of this Agreement, or otherwise within the scope of negotiable items.

B. REPRESENTATION

- Members of the committee shall be individuals who represent the Board, the Administration and the teachers.
- The Board shall be represented by four members appointed by the Board. The Administration shall be represented by the Superintendent and a building principal as selected by the Springfield Principals' Association. The teachers shall be represented by a representative from each school, and a representative from special services. All teacher representatives shall be appointed by the Association's President.

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

- 1. To convene meetings of the committee at the request of:
 - a. The teachers' representatives
 - b. The Board representatives
 - c. The principals' representative
 - d. The discretion of the Superintendent
- To act as chairperson at all meetings of the committee.
- To prepare an agenda for each meeting in relation to the stated purpose of the committee.
- 4. To notify each member of the committee in writing at least five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting, and distribute a copy of the agenda.
- 5. A member of the committee will keep minutes of the meeting and send copies to the Board President, the Superintendent, the President of the Association, and all committee members.

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS

1. To facilitate the preparation of the agenda all items should be submitted to the Superintendent, with copies sent to the Administration representative and the Association's committee chairperson. All items shall be submitted ten (10) days prior to any scheduled committee meeting.

- To gather facts to provide for a complete understanding of each item to be discussed.
- To discuss all tenable solutions to the items presented.
- 4. To reach a consensus among all committee members.
- 5. With agreement of at least 7 members, an advisor may be invited to attend a meeting of the committee.
- 6. To report findings and recommendations to his/her respective groups.

ARTICLE 31 FAIR DISMISSAL PROCEDURE

A. NOTIFICATION OF STATUS

1

On or before May 15 of each year, the Board or its designee shall give to each non-tenured staff member continuously employed by it since the preceding September 30 either:

- A written offer of a contract for employment for the next succeeding year
 providing for at least the same terms and conditions of employment, but
 with such increases in salary and benefits as may be required by law or
 agreement between the Board and the Association, or
- 2. A written notice that employment will not be offered for the next succeeding school year.

B. REASONS

Any non-tenured teacher who receives a notice that employment will not be offered for the next succeeding school year may, within fifteen (15) days thereafter in writing, request a statement of reasons for such non-employment from the Superintendent, which statement shall be given to the teacher in writing within fifteen (15) days after receipt of such request.

C. INFORMAL CONFERENCE

Whenever a non-tenured teaching staff member has requested in writing and has' received a written statement of reasons for non-re-employment, he/she may request in writing an informal appearance before the Board, which shall be the non-tenured teaching staff member's sole remedy in the Springfield School District and shall not be subject to arbitration. Such written request must be submitted to the Board within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Board's statement of reasons. Such an informal appearance shall be scheduled within thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of the Board's statement of reasons.

D. BOARD DETERMINATION

Within three (3) days following the informal appearance, the Board shall notify the affected teaching staff member, in writing, of its final determination.

E. FAILURE TO COMPLY

Should the Board fail to give a non-tenured teaching staff member either an offer of contract for employment for the next succeeding year or a notice that employment will not be offered within the time and in the manner provided by this Article, the Board shall be deemed to have offered to that teacher continued employment for the next succeeding year upon the terms and conditions of employment as may be required by law or agreement between the Board and the Association.

F. NOTIFICATION OF INTENTION TO RETURN

If the teacher desires to accept such employment for the next succeeding school year, he/she shall notify the Board of such acceptance, in writing, on or before June 1, in which event such employment shall continue as provided for herein. If such notice is not provided, the Board shall not be required to continue the employment of the teacher.

G. BOARD DISCRETION

The Board retains full discretionary authority under the law to decide whether any particular non-tenured teacher's employment should or should not be renewed for the next succeeding school year. Its determination need not be grounded on unsatisfactory classroom or professional performance.

H. PROCEDURE

A non-tenured teacher shall not be entitled to a formal hearing nor shall the matter be subject to the grievance or arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 32 SALARIES AND OTHER COMPENSATION

A. SALARY GUIDES

The salary guides for all teachers are set forth in Schedule A which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

B. UNUSED SICK DAYS

1. A teacher who retires pursuant to N.J.T.P.A.F. shall be paid for accumulated unused sick days at the rate of:

	PER DAY	MAXIMUM
2016-17	\$87.02	\$9,573
2017-18	\$88.76	\$9,764
2018-19	\$90.54	\$9,959

2. If an employee dies prior to retirement, his/her estate shall receive the above payment.

C. EXTRA SERVICE

Counselors who provide educational services approved by the Superintendent following the end of the school year shall be compensated at the following hourly rates:

2016-17	\$54.42
2017-18	\$55.51
2018-19	\$56.62

D. DOCTORATE

Employees with earned doctorates shall be paid an additional annual amount of \$1,895.

E. CREDIT FOR SERVICE

It is the Springfield School District's practice that newly appointed teachers are not credited for work performed in a private school. Additionally, it is the Springfield School District's practice that new teachers may receive public school credit at the time of initial hiring in accordance with an agreement between the prospective employee and the Board.

ARTICLE 33 AFTER-SCHOOL ACTIVITIES

A. DETERMINATION

The existence and scope of the after-school extracurricular activities and the assignments thereto shall be as determined by the Board on recommendation of administration.

B. EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

During a school year, if there are after-school extracurricular activities, not mentioned on Schedule E, the program is to be conducted five minutes after dismissal of school. Where these hours may not apply, as in the case of an evening club activity, the hours will be established with administrative approval. No teacher will be involuntarily assigned if there are volunteers available. If any

new club is proposed, a stipend negotiated between the Association and Superintendent will be in place prior to Board approval.

Any approved elementary after-school activities will be compensated at the following hourly rates:

2016-17	\$47.32
2017-18	\$48.26
2018-19	\$49.23

C. PROCEDURE

Teachers will submit hours worked on these activities to the Superintendent by the fifth (5th) day of each month and shall be paid at the next regular pay period.

ARTICLE 34 OVERNIGHT FIELD TRIPS

A. The teachers participating in overnight field trips shall be compensated at the rate of:

2016-17	\$251.93
2017-18	\$256.97
2018-19	\$262.11

B. The coordinator (maximum of two) shall be compensated at the rate of:

2016-17	\$287,42
2017-18	\$293.16
2018-19	\$299.03

ARTICLE 35 SUMMER SCHOOL

A. EXISTENCE AND SCOPE

The existence and scope of the summer school program shall be prescribed by the Board. If any course is under-subscribed in the opinion of the Board, the Board shall reserve the right to cancel the proposed offering.

B. NOTICE OF OPENINGS

In order to implement the summer school program, the Superintendent shall send to each teacher a list of proposed classes and an application.

C. APPLICATION

Teachers interested in a summer school position shall submit a written application to the Superintendent indicating the classes for which they wish to be considered, or for the position of director or coordinator.

D. POSTING POSITION

When positions for summer school have been filled, the Superintendent shall notify each applicant of his/her appointment or non-appointment.

E. SALARY

Teaching Summer School \$53.22/hour for summer 2016, \$54.29/hour

summer 2017, \$55.37/hour for summer 2018

Summer School Director \$6,032 for summer program 2016, \$6,153 for

summer program 2017, \$6,276 for summer

program 2018 (4 week summer program.)

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION SALARY GUIDE TEACHERs 2016 - 2017

SG 2016 - 17 SG 2016 - 17 SG 2016 - 17							
Step		bers BA		acher MA		acher 6th	
0	S	54,175	S	58,909	S	63,904	
i	S	54,814	S	59,547	S	64,542	
2	S	55,432	\$	60,165	S	65,160	
3	\$	56,070	S	60,804	\$	65,799	
4	\$	56,709	\$	61,443	\$	66,437	
5	\$	57,369	S	62,179	S	67,202	
6	\$	57,984	\$	62,875	S	67,933	
7	\$	59,402	S	65,397	S	69,487	
8	S	60,983	\$	66,016	\$	71,203	
9	\$	62,090	\$	67,186	S	72,448	
10	S	64,184	\$	69,354	\$	74,685	
11	\$	65,116	\$	70,379	S	75,808	
12	S	66,906	2	72,351	S	77,975	
13	\$	68,649	S	73,883	\$	79,611	
14	2	70,554	\$	75,974	5	81,902	
il i							
нн							
GG	S	71,454	\$	76,874	S	82,802	
FF	\$	72,704	\$	78,124	S	84,052	
EE	S	73,904	\$	79,324	\$	85, 25 2	
DD	\$	75,104	\$	80,524	\$	86,452	
CC	S	76,106	5	81,526	S	87,454	
BB	\$	77,440	\$	83,021	\$	89,123	
AA	\$	77,913	5	83,554	\$	89,689	
Z	\$	78,388	\$	84,096	\$	90,274	
Y	\$	78,893	S	84,655	\$	90,867	
X	\$	79,413	S	85,228	\$	91,476	
W	\$	79,948	\$	85,805	\$	92,093	
V	\$	80,409	\$	86,293	S	92,608	
ū	\$	80,874	S	86,787	\$	93,093	
Ţ	5	81,507	\$	87,557	S	93,916	
S	S	82,551	S	89,239	5	95,288	
R	S	83,231	S	89,716	\$	95,649	
Q	S S	84,282	5	91,024	S	96,875	
Р О	S	85,987	\$	92,934	5	98,956	
N	\$	87,672 88,863	S	93,796 95,536	\$	1 00,43 5 1 01,325	
M	\$	90,659	\$	97,246	S	102,943	
L	S	92,404	\$	98,888	\$	104,507	
ĸ	\$	94,070	\$	100,465	\$	106,016	
ĵ	Š	94,464	\$	102,582	5	108,090	
l	Š	94,992	S	103,906	\$	109,314	
•	-	- 114	-	,00,000	-	1971917	

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION SALARY GUIDE TEACHERS 2017 - 2018

	SG 2017 - 18		SG 2017 - 18		SC	2017 - 18	
Step	Teachers BA			acher MA		Teacher 6th	
0	\$	54,825	\$	59,559	S	64,554	
t	\$	55,464	S	60,197	\$	65,192	
2	S	56,082	S	60,815	\$	65,810	
3	2	56,720	\$	61,454	\$	66,449	
4	S	57,359	\$	62,093	S	67,087	
5	\$	58,019	S	62,829	\$	67,852	
6	\$	58,634	\$	63,525	S	68,583	
7	\$	60,052	S	66,047	\$	70,137	
8	\$	61,633	\$	66,666	S	71,853	
9	\$	62,740	S	67,836	\$	73,098	
10	\$	64,834	5	70,004	S	75,335	
1 t	S	65,766	\$	71,029	\$	76,458	
12	5	67,556	\$	<i>7</i> 3,001	\$	78,625	
13	2	69,299	\$	74,533	\$	80,261	
14	\$	71,204	\$	76,624	\$	82,552	
II.			Dye				
НН	S	72,104	\$	77,524	\$	83,452	
GG	S	73,004	S	78,424	\$	84,352	
FF	\$	74,254	\$	79,674	\$	85,602	
EE	\$	75,454	\$	80,874	\$	86,802	
рÞ	\$	76,654	S	82,074	S	88,002	
с¢	S	77,656	\$	83,076	S	89,0 04	
ВB	\$	78,990	\$	84,571	S	90,673	
AA	\$	79,463	\$	85,104	\$	91,239	
Z	\$	79,938	\$	85,646	\$	91,824	
Y	S	80,443	S	86,205	S	92,417	
x	\$	80,963	\$	B6,778	\$	93,026	
w	\$	81,498	S	87,355	S	93,643	
V	\$	81,959	S	87,843	\$	94,158	
υ	\$	82,424	\$	88,337	\$	94,643	
Т	S	83,057	\$	89,107	\$	95,466	
S	\$	84,101	\$	90,789	\$	96,838	
R	S	84,781	\$	91,266	\$	97,199	
Q	\$	85,832	\$	92,574	\$	98,425	
P	\$	87,537	\$	94,484	\$	100,506	
0	S	89,222	\$	95,346	\$	101,985	
N	S	90,413	\$	97,086	\$	102,875	
M	\$	92,209	\$	98,796	\$	104,493	
L	S	93,954	\$	100,438	\$	106,057	
K	\$	95,620	S	102,015	S	107,566	
1	\$	96,014	\$	104,132	S	109,640	
1	S	96,542	S	105,456	S	110,864	

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION SALARY GUIDE TEACHERS 2018 - 2019

	80.3	01 910	l ez	201P 10	S	2018 - 19
Step	SG 2018 - 19 Teachers BA			SG 2018 - 19 Teacher MA		eacher 6th
0	S	55,478	S	60,212	S	65,207
Ĭ	S	56,117	S	60,850	5	65,845
2	\$	56,735	S	61,468	S	66,463
3	\$	57,373	\$	62,107	S	67,102
4	\$	58,012	\$	62,746	\$	67,740
5	\$	58,672	Š	63,482	Š	68,505
6	S	59,287	\$	64,178	S	69,236
7	S	60,705	S	66,700	\$	70,790
8	Ş	62,286	\$	67,319	\$	72,506
9	S	63,393	S	68,489	\$	73,75,1
10	S	65,487	S	70,657	S	75,988
11	S	66,419	S	71,682	S	77,111
12	S	68,209	S	73,654	S	79,278
13	S	69,952	S	75,186	\$	80,914
14	Š	71,857	S	77,277	S	83,205
ii	S	72,767	5	78,187	S	84,115
нн	Š	73,667	\$	79,087	\$	85,015
GG	Ş	74,567	Š	79,987	S	85,915
FF	S	75,817	S	81,327	S	87,165
EE	S	77,017	S	82,437	S	88,365
DD	Š	78,217	5	83,637	S	89,565
CC	S	79,219	\$	84,639	S	90,567
BB	\$	80,553	\$	86,134	\$	92,236
AA	S	81,026	S	86,667	S	92,802
Z	5	B1,501	S	87,209	\$	93,387
Y	S	82,006	\$	87,768	\$	93,980
X	S	82,526	\$	88,341	S	94,589
w	S	83,061	\$	88,918	S	95,206
V	S	83,522	\$	89,406	S	95,721
U	\$	83,987	\$	89,900	\$	96,206
T	\$	84,620	S	90,670	\$	97,029
\$	S	85,664	\$	92,352	\$	98,401
R	\$	86,344	\$	92,829	S	98,762
Q	S	87,395	\$	94,137	\$	99,988
P	\$	89,100	\$	96,047	S	102,069
0	\$	90,785	S	96,909	S	103,548
N	2	91,976	S	98,649	S	104,438
M	\$	93,772	S	100,359	\$	106,056
L	\$	95,517	\$	102,001	\$	107,620
K	2	97,183	S	103,578	S	109,129
Į	S	97,577	\$	105,695	\$	111,203
1	S	98,105	S	107,019	\$	112,427

SCHETALE E 2013-301 THOSE 2013-2018 Consul CAL Brooms In-Street In DRETTIC

	SCHEDULE E Category - Sports	E	2012-2013 Contract	2913-2014 Contract	2014-2015 Contract	2015-2016 Contract	2016-17 Contract	2017-18 Contract	2018-19 Contract
	Head - Footpell	13	8742	89 17	1085	9277	9463	1462	9846
	Head - Baskeball	13		8248	8413	8581	6763	2925	3106
	Wreshing Spring Yrack	2		7802	7968	8117	6280	\$445	8814
-	Head - Baseball	1-1	8566	6799	6936	7074	7216	7340	7.507
-	Flotd Flotkey Soccer	2	6864	6799	(935	7074	7215	7360	7607
_	Softwal Gymnastica	1		8798 8798	8588 8583	7074	7218 7215	7360 7360	7607 7607
		-							
Ξ	Head - Swimming		5673 6010	5884 8130	6714 6263 6360	8376	6032	8193	6278 6768
	Winter Track Ice Hockey			6241	6366	6454	6623	6758	6891
_	Head - Ternia	-2		5128	\$230	6335	E441	5550	6881
_	Volleyball Gross Country		6027 6027	5129 8125	\$230 \$230	8338 8338	8441	5650 5660	6681
			7.5						The state of
	Head - Golf Bowling	-	3040 3040	3121 3121	3184 3184	3247 3247	1312 1312	3378 3378	3448 3446
_	Cheerlanding - Winter		3661	3734	3809	3885	1063	4642	4123
	Head - Cheerlooding - Fall	1	3224	3268	3384	3411	3490	3880	3831
5	Assistanta - Football	1	4685	£687	E121	£967	7096	7231	7383
8	Are intents - Besketted Viresting	8	6142	6714	5912	6030	6160	8273	6399
ō	Assistanta - Beseball	1	4188	4661	4774	4870	4947	6967	5168
-	Field Hockey Socrey	0	4685	4681	4174	4470	4807	8067	5166
	Softball	1	4535	4581	4774	4870	4967	5067	5168
-	Spring Track Gymnestica	0	86138	6239	\$343	E450	5629	5871	5784
D	Assistanja - Seimming	i	3307	3455	3624	3564	3686	3740	3814
E	Austatorits - Pervis	Ž	2841	2898	2154	3016	3076	3137	3199 3199
	Voleybell Cross Country	1	2841	2816	2954	3016	3075	3137	34000
-	Weter Track	2	2950	3009	3049	3131	3193	3267	5322
F	Assistants - Cheerleading - Fall	1	2677	2731	2786	2841	2898 3371	2956 3438	3016 3807
	Cheerleading - Winter ton Hockey	2	2114 2295	3176 2341	3240 2388	2306 2436	2484	2534	2588
-	Athletic Trainer /Equipment Menager	3	8447	6575	6707	6142	8178	7118	7290
	(Per sesson)		4700		2000	3827	3903	2961	4061
	Middle School Athletic Coordinator (Per year)	1	3608	3478	3782	3621	2943	3301	
-	FMQ Coaches - Soccer	3	3716	2789	3146	3842	4021	4102	4184
	Besketbak	13	3716 3716	3789	3848	3941	4921	4102	4184 4184
-	Softheit	1	3715	3789	3145	湿	4821	4102	4184
pd 814	Rounly - with no maximum hours per event.								
Ξ	Crowd Control		25.13 25.13	25.63 25.63	26.15 26.15	25.57 25.57	27,26 27,20	27,76 27,78	21.30 21.30
	Weight Room su: ervisor Ticket Seller	-	25.13	25.63	26.15	26.67	27.20	27.78	21.30
	Cameraman Fam Editor	-	26,13 25,13	28.63	26.78 26.15	28.87 28.67	27,20 27,20	27.75	28.30 28.30
-	Amount		25.13	26.83	28.18	26.57	27.20	27,38	28.30
-	Timer		28,13	28.63	26.15	26.67	27.20	27,38	21.30
	Chaptrone		25.13	25.63	26,18	26.57	27.30	27.38	24.30
	Sunset School Detention		25.13 25.13	25,53 25,63	26.15 26.15	26.67 26.67	27.20 27.20	27.78 27.78	28,30 28.30
	Hourly - with no maximum hours per event:								
	Situ Maryloer		36.08	38,78	37.62	38.27	20.00	39.81	40.61

SC-COALS C SW1-2019 THEN SW4-2019

Concert Director	36.06	38.78	37.52	38.27	39,03	29.81	40.81	
Category - Clubs / Adv leors	2012-2013	2013-2014	2014-2016	2013-2016	2018-17	2017-18	2018-18	
	Contract	Contract	Contract	Contract	Contract	Contract	Contract	
Yeerbook - HS	1 3770	3848	3822	4001	4051	4182	4248 3814	
Yearbook - MS	1 387	3488	3824	3534	3668 4081	3740 4162	4248	
Newspaper - HS Horramyrk Club - MS	1 3770 3 1344	3846 1393	3922	4001 3460	1479	1508	1838	-
Hornwork Club - MS	3 1366 3 1366	1383	1421	1450	1479	1608	1638	-
Physical Education Club - MS ASK (GEPA) Club	3 1346	1393	1421		1479	1800	1638	
AV Coordinator- HS	3770	3846	3922	1450 4001	4581	4162	4248	
AV COURSIANS- NO	-							
Literary Magazine - HS	1 1421	1449	1478	1508	1638	1589	1600	
Business Manager - H5 YB	1 1421	1449	1478	1803	1638	1569	1400	
Sepinesa Manaper - HS NP	1 1421	1449	1478	1554	1838	1580	1600	
Business Manager - HS NP Business Manager - Yearbook - MS	0 1311	1337	1364	1391	1419	1447	1476	
Bus nass Manager - Newpaper - HS	0 1421	1445	1478	1502	1638	1689	1600	-
Art Club - HS	1 1421	1445	1478	1508	1638	1569	1800 1478	-
Art Chib - MS	1 1311	1337	1364	1291 1608	1838	1609	1600	-
Junior Class Advisor - HS	1 1421	1449	1478	1508	1638	1985	1860	
Newspaper -MS Volunteer Club- HS	0 1421	1445	967	288	1096	1026	1046	-
Volunteer Club- HS	1 929	948	367	106	1010	1923	A CONTRACTOR	
0.12.52.77.100	4 9999	2767	1842	2899	2957	3016	3077	
Quiz Boyl - HS Mock Trial - HS	1 2732	2787	2842	2899	2957	3016	3077	
MOCK THE * NO	2100	2107	-	-	and the same			
Assistant Pay Director/Chorsographer -HS	1 3387	3455	3924	3514	3686	3740	3814	
Assistant Play Director/Choraographer-MS	1 3169	1712	2297	3363	3430 7698	3499	3449	
Rand Ciractor - HS	1 6564	64.67	6821	6957		7238	7383	
Musical Director - HS (Spring)	1 4262	4347	4434	4523	4613	4706	4800	
Musical Otractor - MS	1 3934	4013	4093	4176	4199	4343	4430	
Crama Director - HS (Fall)	1 3934	4013	4093	4176	4253	4343	4430	
		100		100	7	10000		-
Peer Leaders - HS	2 929	141	967	954	1006	1028	1048	
Peer Leaders - MS	2 929	148	967 967	886	1006	1025	1045 1048	-
Peer Mediation - HS	1 929	144	147	364 343	1006	1026	1046	-
Sophomore Class Advisor Student Auxiliary - H5	1 929	948 948	947	964	1006	1026	1046	-
Student Auxiliary - HS	6 929	144	267	955	1006	1026	1046	-
Attemative Club - HS	1 926	348	20/	500	Inc.	1020	The state of	
W. H.L	3 801	775	121	670	(61	864	677	
World Language Club - HS	3 801	613 613	170	- 5	681	864	877	
World Language Club - MS National Honor Society - HS	1 601	613	625 628	634 634		1	677	-
National Honer Society - HS Environmental Cads - HS	1 601	613	E34	238	651	654	677	
Environmental Club - HS Environmental - MS	1 601 1 601	613	625 625	638	681	684	677	
Chesa Chib - HS	1 929	548			1008	1026	1048	
Medical Careers Ctub - HS	1 601	613	626	638	681	664	877	
Key Club - HR	601	813	625	638 638	451	684	677	
Kay Club - HS Ski Club - HS	601	813	625	838	881	884	677	
Math Lee :ue	601 601	613	626	638	851	884	677	
Model UN	1 601	613	625	838	6.61	984	677	
Junior Statesman - HS	1 601	673	625	638	681	854	877	
Amnesty International - HS Freshman Class Advisor - HS	0 101	613	626	838	881	884	1 11	-
Freshman Class Advisor - HS	768	780	796	1 1 2	120	545	862	
ERTHS	1 765	790	796	812	120	845	862 677	
Resturant	1 691	813		634	651	664	677	
FBLA	601	813	625	638 638	641		677	-
LGST	1 601	613	625	930		The same	-	
							1 1000	
Weight Room - HS (Fall, Winter, Spring)	3 104	1896	1933	1972	2011	2051	2092	-
8th Grade Committee - MS		1635		1972	2011	2061	2092	
Book Room Supervisor HS	1 1866	1895			2011	2061	2092	
Committees and an arrangement and	7.1	10.74	- CONT.		S TO SENSE	The same	THE PARTY	
Student Council - HS	1 1630	1672	1765		1774	1810	1548	
Student Council - MS	1 1202	1226	1261	1276	1301	1327	1354	
Service Class Advisor - HS	1 1679	1672	1706	1739	1774	1810	1846	
		27						- 1
Coordinator	\$000	5100	5202	8306	5412	5670	5831	
				2002 TOUR	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	
VAMELY MATH AND BUIENCE			2614-2018	2010-2076	Contract	Contract	Contract	
		Contract	Contract	Contract 973	193 193	1012	1033	
	217	935	964	213		1012	Perdit	
	-		-					-
			-				7 13 216	
		-					113	
							S. M. S.	

į

ļ

ARTICLE 36 OTHER ACTIVITIES

- Teachers who write curriculum during the summer shall be compensated at the A. rate of \$41.40/hour for 2016-17, \$42.23/hour for 2017-18, and \$43.07/hour for 2018-19. The total compensation for any curriculum project will be established prior to the start of any work.
- Teachers who conduct staff development activities during the summer shall be B. compensated at the rate of \$54.42/hour for 2016-17, \$55.51/hour for 2017-18, and \$56.62/hour for 2018-19.

ARTICLE 37 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS

CHILDREN OF STAFF A.

Children of staff members who live out of the Springfield School District may attend school in the Springfield School District at the tuition rate set by the Board annually, provided that the children receive only in-district services in a placement within the Springfield School District public schools, at the Superintendent's discretion.

PART IV - CUSTODIANS

ARTICLE 38 CURRENT DAILY WORK SCHEDULE AND WORK WEEK

The current daily work schedule of all employees covered by Part IV of this A. Agreement shall be 8 hours per day between the hours of 6:00 A.M. and 11:00 P.M., including a one-half (1/2) hour paid lunch. Schedule assignments shall be determined by the Administration and the individual employee hours are subject to change upon five (5) days notification by the Board unless change are mutually agreed upon.

6:00 A.M. - 2:00 P.M. Dayton High School:

11:00 A.M. - 7:00 P.M. 2:00 P.M. - 10:00 P.M. 3:00 P.M. - 11:00 P.M.

6:00 A.M. – 2:00 P.M. F.M.G.:

11:00 A.M. - 7:00 P.M. 2:00 P.M. - 10:00 P.M.

6:00 A.M. – 2:00 P.M. Caldwell, Sandmeier, Walton:

11:00 A.M. - 7:00 P.M.

2:00 P.M. -- 10:00 P.M.

Maintenance:

6:00A.M. - 2:00 P.M. 7:00 A.M. - 3:00 P.M. 11:00 A.M. - 7:00 P.M.

B. The workweek shall consist of forty (40) hours, Monday through Friday.

C. OVERTIME

Overtime shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times the regular rate of pay for all hours in excess of forty (40) worked during the regular workweek. Overtime work opportunity shall be offered to all personnel covered by this Agreement by means of establishing a work site based overtime call list within job classifications from which names will be called in rotation, except that maintenance personnel shall be offered the opportunity to work custodial overtime.

- 1. The opportunity to work overtime shall be first afforded to the most senior person.
- 2. The overtime distributed according to the above basis shall be recorded on a paid hour basis. This list shall be kept for a period of one (1) year starting with the effective date of this Agreement and shall be made available upon request to the respective Custodial and Maintenance personnel.
- 3. If overtime work is offered to any person in accordance with the above procedure and that person refuses the overtime, then the said person shall be charged with having performed overtime work for purposes of calculation of equal distribution of overtime work only.
- 4. At the end of each year, a new list shall be made.
- Overtime compensation shall be calculated on an employee's base salary plus any stipends for Head Custodian, Night Custodian or Bus Driver. Overtime compensation shall be paid within thirty (30) days of being earned.

D. CALL-IN

Any employee called into work at a time not contiguous to his/her regularly scheduled shift shall be guaranteed at least three (3) hours pay at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times the regular rate of pay for such call-in work during the regular work week and twice the regular rate of pay for call-in work performed on Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays.

E. SUMMER HOURS

During July and August the workday shall consist of four (4) consecutive hours on each Friday (unless a longer or shorter workday is mutually agreed upon).

F. NIGHT SHIFT

- 1. Personnel to staff the night shift will be selected on a voluntary basis. If there is no volunteer, the Board will make the assignment.
- 2. Employees whose regular assignment is to the night shift shall receive his/her regular pay plus a night shift differential of:

2016-17	\$1,412
2017-18	\$1,440
2018-19	\$1,469

3. Such employees assigned to the night shift shall not be responsible for supervising activities.

G. INCLEMENT WEATHER

On days when school is closed for snow or other weather emergencies, employees will be released upon completion of his/her duties at the discretion of the Business Administrator or the Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds.

H. WORK LOAD

The Board and the Association shall establish a joint committee to review the custodial work assignments taking into account square footage, difficulty of cleaning and other factors that would affect the employee's workload.

ARTICLE 39 VACATIONS

- Custodians hired September or after shall have one vacation day for each month of service during the school year.
- Custodians shall have the following vacations:

After one year of service 2 weeks vacation

After five years of service 3 weeks vacation

After ten years of service 4 weeks vacation

3. Seniority rights shall prevail in vacation preference.

- 4. Vacation time may be requested at any time during the year except that no vacations shall be granted during the week prior to the opening of school in September. Vacation schedules are to be arranged so that an employee will be in each building at all times. Vacations are subject to the approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 5. Except at the high school, no more than one (1) employee may take such vacation time during any given week. Seniority rights prevail in selection. Whenever necessary overtime accrued during the pay period preceding vacation would be added to the first pay after vacation.
- 6. Vacation pay shall be disbursed to employees covered by this Agreement either upon the last work day prior to commencement of his/her vacations or on the last payday prior to his/her vacations.

ARTICLE 40 HOLIDAYS

A. The following holidays shall be granted to all employees covered by this Part IV.

Fourth of July
Columbus Day
Labor Day
Rosh Hashanah
Yom Kippur
Thanksgiving Day
Friday following Thanksgiving
Christmas Day
New Year's Day
Good Friday
Memorial Day

- B. In addition to the above holidays, four (4) holidays shall be mutually scheduled by the employee and his/her supervisor for a total of fifteen (15) holidays.
- C. All employees may be dismissed from work as soon as all regular work is completed and buildings are secured on the Wednesday preceding Thanksgiving and the last workday preceding the winter holiday break.
- D. Employees may choose to work on agreed upon holidays, upon the approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee, for an equal amount of time off at another time. No employee shall be permitted to use discretion in selecting more than three (3) of the fifteen (15) holidays.

ARTICLE 41 VOLUNTARY TRANSFER, REASSIGNMENT AND PROMOTION

The Association President shall be notified of all promotional and non-promotional vacancies in the custodial, maintenance and bus driver field as soon as they become known. Notice of such vacancies shall be posted on the bulletin board in each school in the Springfield School District. All custodial employees are guaranteed the right to apply for such positions and the Board shall give due consideration to the seniority of employees applying for such positions. It is recognized, however, that appointment to the vacancy will be made at the discretion of the Board, and that the Board can hire from outside the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 42 TENURE OF OFFICE AND SENIORITY

- A. All employees covered by the terms of this Part IV shall be eligible for tenure under provision of Title 18A after three (3) consecutive years of probationary service in the Springfield School District.
- B. Seniority shall be counted from the date the employee is hired by the Board for continuous service.
- C. The Board agrees to abide by the terms of N.J.S.A. 18A:17-4 with respect to the reduction in the number of employees covered by this Part IV.

ARTICLE 43 UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT

- A. The Board shall make the following uniforms and equipment available to all employees covered by this Part IV:
 - 1. Uniforms five (5) pants and five (5) shirts per employee per year
 - 2. Winter work jackets (hooded) one (1) per employee
 - 3. Rain gear one (1) set per employee
 - 4. Work gloves (canvas-leather) as needed
 - 5. Slip-on boots (which shall remain on premises)
- B. All the above defined uniforms and equipment may be requisitioned by employees from time to time during the work year as needed by the employee. Worn-out items shall be replaced promptly. Employees are expected to wear such uniforms and Board supplied safety equipment while on duty. Failure to wear the proper uniform and Board supplied safety equipment will result in disciplinary action. Employees will be provided the name of a nearby store where they can try-on and be fitted for uniforms.
- C. The Board agrees to pay for steel-toed safety shoes up to \$179.00 during each year for the term of this Agreement. If an employee cannot wear steel-toed safety

shoes for documented medical reasons, the Board agrees to pay for work/safety shoes up to \$175.00 during each year for the term of this Agreement.

D. Any custodial employee who works alone shall be supplied with a communication device that must be carried at all times while on the job.

ARTICLE 44 CONTRACTS

- A. All employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement shall be notified of his/her contract and agreed upon salary status for the ensuing work year not later than May 15, unless the budget has been defeated, in which case the notification date shall be May 30. In this event, all non-tenured employees shall be informed, in writing, of the intent of the Board to offer or not to offer a contract for the ensuing year not later than May 15, unless the budget is defeated, in which case the notification date shall be May 30.
- B. In the event an agreement is not reached by May 15, all employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement shall be notified of his/her contract and agreed salary status not later than two (2) weeks following the Board's public ratification of the final agreement.
- C. An employee who is resigning from his/her position shall give two (2) weeks' advance notice. A terminated employee shall receive two (2) weeks' pay in lieu of notice.

ARTICLE 45 CONFERENCES/WORKSHOPS/SUBCONTRACTING

A. CONFERENCES AND WORKSHOPS

A custodial or maintenance employee may apply to the Superintendent for permission to attend workshops, conferences or courses related to work assignment and which may or may not be scheduled during work time. If the Superintendent approves the application, the employee shall be reimbursed for costs incurred. The Superintendent's decision is not subject to the grievance procedure.

B. SUBCONTRACTING

If the Board considers subcontracting of custodial or maintenance positions, it shall notify the Association of its deliberations. The Association shall have the right to make a presentation to the Board concerning alternatives to subcontracting prior to a formal decision.

ARTICLE 46 COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED SICK DAYS

Unless contrary to law, an employee covered by this Part IV who retires pursuant to N.J.P.E.R.S. shall be paid for accumulated unused sick days at the rate of:

	PER DAY	MAXIMUM *
2016-17	\$87.02	\$9,573
2017-18	\$88.76	\$9,764
2018-19	\$90.54	\$9,959

B. If an employee dies prior to retirement, his/her estate shall receive the above payment.

ARTICLE 47 EXTRA COMPENSATION

A. STIPENDS

I. Head High School	2016-17 \$ 424	2017-18 \$ 433	<u>2018-19</u> \$ 441
Custodian			
2. Head Custodian	\$2,460	\$2,509	\$2,560
3. Bus Driver	\$2,252	\$2,297	\$2,343
	:		

B. LONGEVITY

Employees shall be entitled to a longevity bonus based upon the following schedule:

YEARS OF SERVICE			
COMPLETED	<u>2016-17</u>	<u>2017-18</u>	<u>2018-19</u>
Ten (10)	\$350	\$357	\$364
Fifteen (15)	\$685	\$699	\$713
Twenty (20)	\$1,035	\$1,056	\$1,077

C. BLACK SEAL LICENSE

A new employee must have a black seal license at the date of hire, or obtain one, at his or her own expense, within one year after hire. The Board may, at its option, extend the time to obtain the license for an additional year. The Board will pay the fee for the renewal license.

D. SPECIAL LICENSE

An employee who possesses a license in pesticide use, herbicide use, computer repair, refrigeration and air conditioning, phone system installation or repair, or as an exterminator and who the Board and/or its administrators and/or agents requests that the employees provide services to the Springfield School District under such license shall be compensated at the following rate per license per year:

2016-17	\$591
2017-18	\$602
2018-19	\$614

ARTICLE 48 PAINTING

All employees covered by Part IV of this Agreement shall perform painting work as assigned and painting shall be a part of the employee's job description. Painting assignments shall be made by the Business Administrator or the Supervisor of Building and Grounds.

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION Salary Guide Custodian and Maintenance 2016-17

	SG 2016 - 17 SG 2016 - 17							
Step	Cı	stodians		intenance				
1	\$	39,493	\$	41,747				
2	\$	40,003	\$	42,257				
3	\$	40,531	\$	42,787				
4	\$	41,171	\$	43,381				
5	\$	41,953	\$	44,209				
6	S	42,463	\$	44,771				
7	S	43,286	\$	45,648				
8	\$	44,128	\$	46,514				
9	\$	44,993	\$	47,381				
10	\$	45,870	\$	48,260				
X	\$	46,465	\$	48,855				
W	\$	47,025	\$	49,415				
V	\$	47,565	\$	49,955				
U	\$	48,411	\$	50,801				
T	\$	48,875	\$	51,265				
S	\$	49,400	\$	51,790				
R	S	50,002	\$	52,392				
Q	S	50,451	\$	52,841				
P	\$	51,357	\$	53,738				
0	\$	52,273	\$	54,654				
N	\$	53,210	\$	55,605				
M	\$	53,691	\$	56,093				
L	\$	53,997	\$	56,424				
K	\$	54,258	\$	56,711				
J	\$	54,873	\$	57,308				
1	\$	55,514	\$	57,953				
H	\$	55,872	\$	58,344				
G	\$	56,188	\$	58,609				
F	\$	56,690	\$	59,082				
Е	S	57,176	\$	59,675				
D	\$	57,780	\$	60,234				
С	\$	58,347	\$	60,820				
В	\$	60,190	\$	62,64 5				
Α	\$	70,809	\$	73,810				

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION Salary Guide Custodian and Maintenance 2017-18

	SG 2017 - 18 SG 2017 - 18							
Step		ıstodians	•	intenance				
1	\$	40,585	\$	42,839				
2	\$	41,095	\$	43,349				
3	\$	41,623	\$	43,879				
4	\$	42,263	\$	44,473				
5	\$	43,045	\$	45,301				
6	\$	43,555	\$	45,863				
7	\$	44,378	\$	46,740				
8	\$	45,220	\$	47,606				
9	\$	46,085	\$	48,473				
10	\$	46,962	\$	49,352				
Х	\$	47,557	\$	49,947				
W	\$	48,117	\$	50,507				
V	\$	48,657	\$	51,047				
IJ	\$	49,503	\$	51,893				
T	\$	49,967	\$	52,357				
S	\$	50,492	\$	52,882				
R	\$	51,094	\$	53,484				
Q	\$	51,543	\$	53,933				
P	\$	52,449	\$	54,830				
0	\$	53,365	\$	55,746				
N	\$	54,302	\$	56,697				
M	\$	54,783	\$	57,185				
Ĺ	\$	55,089	\$	57,516				
K.	\$	55,350	\$	57,803				
J	\$	55,965	\$	58,400				
1	\$	56,606	\$	59,045				
H	\$	56,964	\$	59,436				
G	\$	57,280	\$	59,701				
F	\$	57,782	\$	60,174				
E	\$	58,268	\$	60,767				
D	\$	58,872	\$	61,326				
C	\$	59,439	S	61,912				
В	\$	61,282	\$	63,737				
Α	\$	71,901	\$	74,902				

SPRINGFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION Salary Guide Custodian and Maintenance 2018-19

	SG	2018 - 19	SG 2018 - 19			
Step	Cı	ıstodians	M	aintenance		
1	\$	41,679	\$	43,933		
2	\$	42,189	\$	44,443		
3	\$	42,717	\$	44,973		
4	\$	43,357	\$	45,567		
5	\$	44,139	\$	46,395		
6	\$	44,649	\$	46,957		
7	\$	45,472	\$	47,834		
8	\$	46,314	\$	48,700		
9	\$	47,179	\$	49,567		
10	\$	48,056	\$	50,446		
X	\$	48,651	\$	51,041		
W	\$	49,211	\$	51,601		
V	\$	49,751	\$	52,141		
U	\$	50,597	\$	52,987		
T	\$	51,061	\$	53,451		
S	\$	51,586	\$	53,976		
R	\$	52,188	\$	54,578		
Q	\$	52,637	\$	55,027		
Þ	\$	53,543	\$	5 <i>5</i> ,924		
0	\$	54,459	\$	56,840		
N	\$	55,396	\$	57,791		
M	\$	55,877	\$	58,279		
L	\$	56,183	\$	58,610		
K	\$	56,444	\$	58,897		
1	\$	57,059	\$	59,494		
I	\$	57,700	\$	60,139		
Н	\$	58,058	\$	60,530		
G	\$	58,374	\$	60,795		
F	\$	58,876	\$	61,268		
E	\$	59,362	\$	61,861		
D	\$	59,966	\$	62,420		
C	\$	60,533	\$	63,006		
В	\$	62,376	\$	64,831		
Α	\$	72,995	\$	75,996		

PART V - AIDES AND BUS DRIVERS

ARTICLE 49 WORK YEAR

- A. The work year for ten (10) month employees shall be between September 1 and June 30.
- B. All ten (10) month employees may be scheduled to work according to the school calendar. Any ten (10) month employee required to work beyond the regular school year shall be paid at their appropriate per diem or hourly rate unless such hours are beyond their regular day or fall on a holiday, Saturday, or Sunday. In that case the rate of pay shall be in accordance with Article 53.

ARTICLE 50 WORK WEEK, WORK HOURS, AND WORK LOAD

- A. The regular work day for instructional and non-instructional aides and bus aides shall be no more than seven (7) hours except on Friday or the last work day before a holiday or vacation period in which case the instructional and non-instructional aides may leave immediately following the students. The schedule for all aides shall be developed by administration.
- B. The regular workday for bus drivers shall be no more than eight (8) hours per day and the schedule shall be determined by the administration.
- C. All full-time instructional and non-instructional aides shall have a daily duty-free, unpaid lunch period equal to the length of the students lunch period at the particular school and may leave the building during this time.
- D. All full-time instructional aides and non-instructional aides, excluding bus aides, shall have a ten (10) minute break in the AM or PM assuming adequate coverage is provided.
- E. In the event of an unscheduled student dismissal, instructional aides not employed in any other capacity shall be allowed to leave immediately after such dismissal.
- F. In the event the normal opening of school is delayed for pupils because of an emergency, inclement weather, or other reason, instructional aides not employed in any other capacity will not be required to report more than fifteen (15) minutes before pupils.

ARTICLE 51 EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES

- A. Each employee shall be placed on his/her proper step of the appropriate salary schedule at the beginning of the work year.
- B. Each employee must work one-half of their work year to receive one year's credit toward their next salary increment. "Work" shall include sick days, paid personal leave, and any other day when compensation is provided.
- C. On or before May 30th of each year, the Board shall provide to each employee covered by Part V of this Agreement either:
 - 1. A written offer of a contract for employment for the next succeeding year providing for the terms and conditions of employment, but with such increases in salary and benefits as may be required by law or as set forth in the agreement between the Board and the Association; or
 - 2. A written notice that such employment will not be offered for the next succeeding school year.
 - 3. Any employee who receives a notice of non-employment for the next succeeding school year may, within 10 days thereafter, in writing, request, from the Superintendent, a statement of reasons for such non-employment. Said statement shall be given to the employee in writing within 30 days of the receipt of such request.

ARTICLE 52 SENIORITY AND JOB SECURITY

- A. Seniority shall be defined as service in the Springfield School District and will include the following categories: instructional aide, non-instructional aide, and bus drivers.
- B. A seniority list shall be provided to the Association by November 1 or at the time of a contemplated reduction in force.
- C. Any reduction of positions shall be accomplished in the following manner:
 - 1. Employees shall exercise their total employment seniority to replace a less senior employee in the same job category.
 - In the event that a vacancy occurs, a laid-off instructional or noninstructional aide or bus driver shall be entitled to recall thereto in the order of his/her job category seniority provided such vacancy occurs within 12 months of the lay-off.

- 3. Notice of recall to work shall be addressed to the employee's last known address appearing on the records of the Springfield School District, by certified mail, return receipt requested. Within seven (7) work days from receipt of such notice of recall, the employee shall notify the Board, in writing, whether or not he/she desires to return to the work involved in the recall. If he/she fails to reply, or if he/she indicates that he/she does not desire to return to such work, he/she shall forfeit all of his/her seniority and all rights to recall.
- 4. Any job offerings not within the same job, shift, hours, and days category of work may be offered to the individual, but shall not effect his/her status on the recall list.
- D. Seniority shall not be accumulated during the period of layoff. Upon recall, instructional and non-instructional aides and bus drivers shall have their accumulated seniority restored to the date of layoff.
- E. Recalled employees shall have all benefits restored including, but not limited to, vacation eligibility, step on guide, etc.
- F. All notices for job opportunities within the negotiating unit shall be posted in all work locations on the Association bulletin board at least seven (7) days before the closing date for applications. A copy of each such notice shall be sent to the Association.
- G. An employee shall only lose Springfield School District seniority if he/she resigns or is discharged for cause, irrespective of whether he/she is subsequently rehired by the Springfield School District, or after eighteen (18) months from the date of layoff.

ARTICLE 53 SALARIES, OVERTIME, AND OTHER FORMS OF REMUNERATION

- A. Overtime for bus drivers covered by Part V of this Agreement shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half the hourly salary in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act. Overtime shall be assigned on a rotating and equalized basis based upon seniority and rotated beginning with the most senior employee.
- B. Bus drivers who work on Sundays or holidays shall be paid time and one-half their hourly salary.
- C. Instructional and non-instructional aides shall not be required to serve as the school nurse.
- D. Instructional and non-instructional aides who are required to perform chaperone duty at extracurricular activities shall be paid at the same rate as teachers who perform chaperone duty.

- E. Any full-time instructional and non-instructional aides shall receive a full day's pay when they are required to work at least one-half of their particular workday and are then required to leave school because of an emergency school closing.
- F. As permitted by law, instructional and non-instructional aides who hold substitute or teacher certification shall be eligible for appointment as substitute teachers at the Board-approved rate of pay or the aide salary, whichever is higher, for the day of the assignment as a substitute should a regular substitute be unavailable for class. The Superintendent, or his or her designee, shall make such determination and the staff member shall serve wherever required.
- G. All expenses normally incurred for a field trip (i.e., lodgings, tolls, gas, etc.) will be provided to the bus driver prior to the start of the trip.

ARTICLE 54 VOLUNTARY AND INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

- A. Employees who desire to transfer to another worksite for the next succeeding school year may file a written statement of such desire with the Superintendent. Such statement shall include the worksite or worksites to which he/she desires to be transferred in order of preference. Such requests for transfers and reassignments for the following year shall be submitted no later than April 30 of the current school year.
- B. Notice of an involuntary transfer or reassignment shall be given to employees as soon as is practical, and except in cases of emergency, not later the close of school in June.
- C. In the event that an employee objects to the transfer or reassignment, upon the request of the employee, the Superintendent shall meet with him/her. The employee may have an Association Representative(s) present at such meeting.
- D. A list of open positions in the Springfield School District shall be made available to all employees being involuntarily transferred or reassigned. Said employees may request the positions, in order of preference, to which they desire to be transferred. The Superintendent is not required to honor such request and the decision of the Superintendent shall be final, and not subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE 55 EMPLOYEE OBSERVATION/EVALUATION

- A. Each instructional aide shall be observed at least once during each work year by a member of the Administration.
- B. Within two (2) days of each observation, the instructional aide shall receive a written report, and within five (5) days shall have a conference with the author of

- the report if the report is negative or reflects a need for improvement. Each observation cycle shall be completed before another cycle begins.
- C. Annually, each employee covered by Part V of this Agreement shall receive a written evaluation at the end of the each school year.
- D. Each employee shall have the right to attach a written statement of rebuttal to all written evaluations.
- E. All monitoring or observation of the work performance of an employee shall be conducted openly and with full knowledge of the employee.
- F. An employee who receives a negative evaluation shall be provided a conference with his or her supervisor for the purpose of reviewing the evaluation. Any such employee shall be given a copy of any visit, observation, or evaluation report prepared by his/her evaluator(s) two (2) days before any conference. No such report shall be submitted to the central office, placed in the employee's file, or otherwise acted upon without prior conference with the employee. No employee shall be required to sign a blank or incomplete evaluation form.

ARTICLE 56 JOB POSTING PROCEDURES

- A. All Springfield School District and unit vacancies shall be adequately publicized by the Superintendent in accordance with the following procedure:
 - 1. A notice shall be posted at each worksite, as far in advance as practicable, but no less than seven (7) work days before the final date when applications must be submitted. A copy of said notice shall be given to the Association at the time of posting. Employees who desire to apply for such vacancies shall submit their applications in writing to the Superintendent within the time limit specified in the notice, and the Superintendent shall acknowledge promptly in writing the receipt of all such applications.
 - 2. Employees who desire to apply for a vacancy which may be filled during the summer vacation period shall submit their names and addresses where they can be reached during the summer to the Superintendent, together with the position(s) to which they desire to apply. The Superintendent shall notify such employees of any vacancies or new positions. Such notice shall be sent as far in advance as practicable, but no less than seven (7) days before the final date when applications must be submitted.

ARTICLE 57 COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED SICK LEAVE

A. Upon completion of twenty-five years of service with the Board, 150 accumulated sick days and submission for retirement to the Public Employment Retirement

System, an employee covered by Part V of this Agreement shall be compensated at the following rates for all unused accumulated sick leave:

	PER DAY	<u>MAXIMUM</u>
2016-17	\$17.74	\$2,366
2017-18	\$18.09	\$2,414
2018-19	\$18.45	\$2,462

B. In the event of the death of an employee, payment for all accumulated days as stated above shall be paid to his/her estate within thirty (30) days after the Board is presented with a copy of the death certificate.

ARTICLE 58 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- A. Instructional aides may apply to the Superintendent for permission to attend workshops or conferences related to their work assignment and which may or may not be scheduled during work time. If the Superintendent approves the application, the instructional aide shall be reimbursed for the costs incurred. The Superintendent's decision is final and not subject to the grievance procedure.
- B. A professional development program shall be held on a professional development day of each year during the term of this Agreement of instructional and noninstructional aides.

SPRINGFIELD

Aides & Bus Drivers

Salary Guide

2016 - 2019

Aides

Aides

Years of Serv	i 2016	-17 Hourly	201	7-18 Hourly	2018	8-19 Hourly
	\$					18.28
4 - 6	\$	17.83	\$	18.25	\$	18.68
7+	\$	18.23	\$	18.65	S	19.08

Bus Drivers

Bus Drivers

Years of Sen	vi 2016	-17 Hourly	201	7-18 Hourly	201	8-19 Hourly
0 - 3	S	18,43	-	4	\$	19.28
4 - 6	S	18.83	\$	19.25	\$	19.68
7+	\$	19.23	\$	19.65	S	20.08